EXTENDED TO JULY 15, 2019

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax S8 b, 1245:0041
Form 990 Under section §01(c), 527, or 4947(a}{1) of the Internal Revenue Code {except private foundations}
Department of the Treasury P Do not enter social security numbers an this form as it may be made public. pen to Public.
Interital Ravanue Service 0 WWW.irs.qov/E ructions and the lates ||13I3°°ﬂ°l'l

A For the 2017 calendar year, of tax year beginning SEP 1, 2017 and ending ATJG 31, ‘ 2018

B Chelqk cai:fn- C Name of organization
spploble: 1 NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY

e | COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

D Employer identification number

Dgﬁ?n];, Doing business as 22-1777156
et Number and strest (or F.0. box if mai! is not deliverad to street address}) Reom/suite | E Telephone number

I, | 350 MARSHALL STREET

908-454-7000

#lad City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code

[ Jhmended] pHILLIPSBURG, NJ 08865

G _Gross receipis $ 16,650,278.

Hia) ls this a group retum

Di?&'-’:“‘ F Name and address of principal officer: MARK VALLI
P9 | SAME AS C ABOVE

for subordinates?

|_Tax-exempt status: [X] 501(c)(3) [_J 601(e) ¢ )l (insertno) 1 4947aytyor [ 527 1f "No," attach a list.

J_Website: - WWW . NORWESCAP . ORG

...... [ Jves [XINo

H{b} Ars all subordinates included? |:|Yes |:| No

{see instructions)

Hi{c} Group exemption number p»

Form ctor;ganizatiun‘ [X] Corporation [ ] Trust [ ] Assaclation [ ] Other >
|bar‘t| ummary

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities: NORWES

CAP IS A PRIVATE,

NON-PROFIT CORPORATION ESTABLISHEED IN 1965 TO CREATE OPPORTUNITIES

| L Year of formation: 196 5| M State of legal domicile; NJ

3
c
2| 2 Check this box > |:I if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
g 3 Number of voting members of the governing body {Part VI, line 1a) e i B 14
g 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part Vi, lme‘lb) T Y| 14
$ 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2017 {Part V, line 28) . ... eoveiieiiiiiciciene. |8 348
2| 8 Total number of volunteers {estimate if necessary) U 8 1982
% 7 a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIIl, oolurnn (C) Ilne 12 . | Ta 0.
_< b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form990-T. line 34 ............................. s | 1D 0.
Prior Year Current Year
o| 8 Contributions and grants {Part VIl line Th) 16,943,336, 16,185,878,
% 9  Program service revenus (Part VIII, line 2g) 1,085,107, 463,911.
2| 10 Investment income (Part VIIl, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) 159. 489,
€1 14 Other revenue {Part VIIl, column (&), lines 5, 6d, 86, 9¢, 10c, and 116} ... _ 0. _ _0_3_
12 Total revenus - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIll, column {A), line 12) ... 17,998, 602. 16,650,278,
13 Grants and similar amounts paid {Part 1X, column (A), lines 1-3) 1,589,739, 1,185,156,
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column {A), line 4) 0. 0.
w| 156 Salaries, other compensation, employes benefits {Part IX, column (A), fines 5-1 0} ,,,,,, 12,643,963.] 12,624,653,
§ 18a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (&), line 11&) ... ... e 0. 0.
§. b Total fundraising expenses (Part X, column (D), line 25) P 0. I K 1
17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11F24e) e 3,548,732, 3,165,875,
18 Total expsnses. Add lines 13-17 {must equal Part X, column (A} ine 25) - 17,782,434.| 16,975,684,
19 _Revenus less expenses. Subtractline 18 fromline 12 . ..o 216,168, -325,406.
Beginning of Current Year End of Year
20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 5,280,882, 5,263,679.
Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) 1,273,209, 1,668,210,
Net assets of fund fine 21 fomiing 20 ..o 4,007,673, 3,595,469,

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is

true, correct, and complete, Declaration of preparer (other than officer) i based on all information of which

praparer has any knowledge.

Sign } Signature of officer

Date
Here MARK VALLI, CHIEF EXECUTIVE QFFICER
Type or print name and title )
Print/Type preparer's name arer signature Date Ghock (]| Pmw
Paid BRIDGET HARTNETT 06/02/19] mmggeu 01429163
Preparer |Firm's name . SOBEL & CO., LLC CPX/S FrmsENy 22-1430039
Use Only | Firm's address . 293 EISENHOWER PARKWAY
LIVINGSTON, NJ 07039-1711 Phoneno.973-394-9494
May the IRS discu turn with the preparer sho wva? (see instructions " Yes
722001 11-28-17  LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions Form 990 2017

SEE SCHEDULE O FOR ORGANIZATION MISSION STATEMENT CONTINUATION



NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY

Form 990 {201 COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC., 22-1777156  Page2
‘ Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check if Schedule O contains a response ornote to any line inthis Part Il ..o ey [E_
1  Briefly desciibe the organization's mission:

NORWESCAP IS A PRIVATE, NON-PROFIT CORPORATION ESTABLISHED IN 1965 TO
CREATE OPPORTUNITIES AND CHANGE LIVES FOR LOW-INCOME INDIVIDUALS AND
FAMILIES IN HUNTERDON, MORRIS, SOMERSET, SUSSEX AND WARREN COUNTIES.
NORWESCAP SERVES OVER 30,000 INDIVIDUALS ANNUALLY IN SIX CRITICAL

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the

PHOT FOMM 990 OF S9EZ? et essessesessresssscsssenosnsseesesere. 1 Ye8 (K] No
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program SOIVICOST DYes 11] No

if "Yeos," describe these changes on Schedule C,

4  Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3} and 501(c)(d) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and
revenus, if any, for each program service reponted.

4a  {code: ) (Expenzes $ 11,272,562, incudnggantsors 460,504. ) R % )
AT NORWESCAP, WE BELIEVE EVERYONE SHOULD HAVE ACCESS TO HIGH-QUALITY
EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES AND EXPERIENCES. WE PROVIDE EDUCATION
SERVICES TO YOUNG CHILDREN, SUPPORT YOUTH AND EMERGING ADULTS IN
PURSUING EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES, AND HELP ADULTS OBTAIN EDUCATIONAL
GRANTS AND TRAINING CERTIFICATIONS THAT CAN FUEL THEIR CAREERS.
NORWESCAP SERVES AS THE CHILD CARE RESOURCE AND REFERRAL AGENCY FOR
THREE COUNTIES {SERVING OVER 21,000 INDIVIDUALS) AND AS THE HEAD START
PROVIDER FOR OVER 550 CHILDREN IN FOUR COUNTIES.

a  {code: ) {Exponses § 4,234,182, includinggrantsors 724,252. ) $ 463,911.)
NORWESCAP IS A PRIVATE, NON-PROFIT CORPQRATION ESTABLISHED IN 1965 TO
CREATE OPPORTUNITIES AND CHANGE LIVES FOR LOW-INCOME INDIVIDUALS AND
FAMILIES IN HUNTERDON, MORRIS, SOMERSET, SUSSEX AND WARREN COUNTIES,
NORWESCAP SERVES OVER 30,000 INDIVIDUALS ANNUALLY IN SIX CRITICAL
DOMAINS: EDUCATION; EMPLOYMENT; FINANCIAL CAPACITY BUILDING; HEALTH &
NUTRITION; HOUSING & ENERGY SERVICES; AND, VOLUNTEERISM.

EDUCATION: AT NORWESCAP, WE BELIEVE EVERYONE SHQULD HAVE ACCESS TO
HIGH-QUALITY EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES AND EXPERIENCES. WE PROVIDE
EDUCATION SERVICES TO YOUNG CHILDREN, SUPPORT YOUTH AND EMERGING ADULTS
IN PURSUING EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES, AND HELP ADULTS OBTAIN
EDUCATIONAL GRANTS AND TRAINING CERTIFICATIONS THAT CAN FUEL THEIR

4c  [(code:

] (Emansae $ Iincluding grants of § ) (Revenue $ )

4d  Other program services (Describe in Schedule O.)

{Expenses $ including grants of § ) (Revenue § }
Total program service oxpenses _15,506,744.
Form 990 (2017)
732002 11-28-17 SEE SCHEDULE O FOR CONTINUATION(S)

10230617 758553 NORWESCAP 2017.05060 NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY COMM NORWESC1



NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY

For 2 COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22-1777156  Page3d
I Faﬁ i% [ %Eecﬁh'st of Required Schedules '

Yes | No
1 Is the organization describad in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)?
#f "Yes," complete Schedule A ., et oo rere bt be et arreaeetannas . 11X
2 lsthe organization required to complete Schedufe B Sehedufe or Ccmtrrbutors? X
3 Did the organization engage In direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposnron to candldates for
pubiic office? if *Yes, " complote Schedue C, Part] ................ 3 X
4 Section 501{c}{3) organizations, Did the organization engage in Iobbylng actwltles. or ha\re a sectlon 501 (h} eIectlon in effect
during the tax year? #f "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part il . 4 X
6 s the organization a section 501(c){d), 501{e)(5), or S01{c)(6) organrzatlan that receives membershlp dues, assessments or
similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? Jf "Yes, " complete Schedtle C, Partilf . 5 X
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the nght to
provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts In such funds or accounts? Jf "Yes, " complete Scheduie D, Part | 6 X
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including sasements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? Jf "Yes," compiete Schedule D, Part il .. rebresssetsrserraasse s rrnn 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar asseis? ,'f "Yes, compfete
Schedule D, Part i . I : X
8 Did the organization repert an amount in Part X ||ne 21 for escrow or custodlal account Ilabllny. serveasa custodlen for
amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, cradit repair, or debt negotiation services?
if *Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IV ... |2 X
10 Did the organization, diractly or through a related orgenlzatlon hold assets in ternporanly restncted endowments. permanent
endowments, or quasi-endowments? jf “Yes,* complete Scheduie D, PartV ... . |10 X
11 I the organization’s answer 1o any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D Parts VI VII VIII X, or X
as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and squipment in Part X, line 10? i *Yes," complete Schedule D,
PartVi oo e M2 X
b Did the organization report an arnount for |nvestments other securltres in Part X I|ne 12 that is 5% or more of |ls 1otal
assets reported in Part X, line 187 Jf “Yes, " completa Schedule D, Part Vit ................ SO 4 ) X
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13 1hat is 5% or more 01 |ts total
assets reported in Part X, line 167 if *Yes, * complete Schedule D, Part Vill . B I & I X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of |ts total assels reported in
Pant X, line 187 f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX . SR I & - 1 AP
e Did the organization report an amount for other Iiabrlltles in Part X hne 25‘? .rf "Yes, comp.r‘efe Schedu.fe D Part x s 1110 X
f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the arganization’s liability for uncertain tax pesitions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)7 if "Yes,* complete Schedufe D, Part X ............ |1If X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial staternents for the tax year? Jif “Yes," complete
Schedule D, Parts Xland Xl .............. S - X
b Was the organization included in consolldated mdependent audlted f nancnal statements for the tax year‘?
If "Yes," and if the organization answerad "No" 1o line 12a, then completing Schedide D, Parts X! and Xif is optional ............... | 12 X
13  Is the organization a school described in section 17012 if "Yes,* complete Schedulo E ... .ccccooveereencenccnnee | 18 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? o 1da X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundrarsmg, buslness,
investment, and program setvice activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
or more? If “Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts fand IV .. OO I - X
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column {A), line 3 more than $5 DDO of grants or other assrstance to or fer any
foreign organization? jf “Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts lfand IV .......cccoov.. e |18 X
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grents or othsr asslstance to
or for foreign individuals? jf "Yes, * complete Schedile F, Farts litand IV . R SOOI i |- X
17  Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundralsrng servlces on Parl IX
column (A}, lines 6 and 11e? if "Yes, " complete Schedule G, Part! . et 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross inoorne and contrlbutlons on Part VIII Irnes
1c and 8a? if "Yes," complete Schedule G, Partll .................. OO I X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from garnlng actl\rltles on F'ar'( VIII Iine 93? Jf "Yes
—Complete Schodle G Part Il e e 19 X
Form 980 2017

732003 11-28-17
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY

Form 990 (2017) COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22-1777156  page4
art heckiist of Required Schedules tcontinued) - '

Yes | No
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? if "Yes, " complete Scheduls H | 20a X
b If "Yes" to line 204, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? | 20b
21  Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column {A), line 17 i “Yes," complate Schedule ), Parts 1and il ..............ccccooervririninorns |21 X
22  Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 27 jf “Yes," complete Schedule |, Parts land il .................. e 221 X
23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VI, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensatlon of the organization ] current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees?  ff "Yes," complete
Schedule J . . v |28l X
24a Did the organizetion ha\re a tax exempt bond issue wnlh an outstanding princtpal amount of more than $100 000 as of the
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 {f "Yes, " answer fines 24b through 24d and complete
Schedule K. If "No", go to line 288 ............... ST I . - X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? rererrreen e 24b
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defeaee
any tax-exempt bonds? . 240
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" ieeuer for bonds outstandlng al any tlme durmg the year? e 1 24d
25a Section 501(c}{3), 501(c){4), and 501(c}{29} organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? if “Yes," complete Schedule L, Part! ............. e | 258 X

b s the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benafit transaction with a disqualified personin a pr|or year. and
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? ff "Yes, " complete
Schedule L, Part! ... oo | 25D X

26 Did the organization report any amount on F'art )( Ime 5 6 or 22 for recel\rables from or payablee to any current o
former officers, diractors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or disqualified persons? if "Yes,"
complete Schedule L, Partll ... vvernirrenens |28 X

27 Did the organization provide a grant or olher assnstance to an offlcer, dlrector, trustee, key employee, subetantlal
contributor or employes thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled entity or farmily member

of any of these persons? )f “Yes," complote Schedule L, Partlll  ............... ISUUOOOPO I 4 X
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following partiee (eee Sohedule L, F'art IV ' .
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions): B
a A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? if "Yes," complete Schedwle L, Part IV ........cccovveviveveennenenn, 28a X
b A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? [f "Yes, " cornplete Schedule L, Part IV ... | 28b X
¢ An entity of which a currert or former officer, director, trustes, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was an officer,
director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? if "Yes,* complste Schedule L, Part IV .. vrerrsennneensrnnne. | 28C X
29  Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? ff "Yes," comp.'ete Schedule M R X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified ooneervatlon
contributions? if “Yes, * complete Schedule M . e SO UUUOUUTUUPPPUOUUPUPUUUPR I 1 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dlseolve and cease operatlone?
If "Yes," complete Schedule N, Part] ................ . SO I X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or tranefer more than 25% of |te net aesets? l’f "Yes, * compfete
Schedule N, Partll ........oeoom... I I X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entlty dlsregarded as eeparate from the orgenizatlon under Flegulatlone
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 #f “Yes," complate Schedule K, Part! ............. . |88 X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? f "Yes, " cornplete Schedufe g pan u m or fv and
PAREV, N8 T oo sasa s sns s ats et sttt 2l X
35a Did the organization have a controllect entity wuthln the meanlng of seo’uon 512(b]{13)? i I8Bal X
b i "Yes" 1o line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction w|th a controlled entily
within the meaning of section 512{(b){(13)? i "Yes," complete Scheduie R, Part V, line 2 . 35b X
36 Section 501{c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non- chantable related organlzatlon?
If "Yes," complete Schaedule R, Part V, line 2 . 38 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of ile aetwltles through an entnty that ie not a related orgamzanon
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? Jf "Yes," complete Schedide R, Part VI .........c.ccccceeueene 37 X
38  Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 192
| Form 990 filers are requirad to lete Schedule O i 3 | X
Form 990 (2017)

732004 11-28-47
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY
Form 990 (2017} __COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC, 22-1777156  Page B
tatements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note toany fine inthis Paty e, [
Yes | No

1a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1006, Enter -0- if not applicable ... ... | 1a 116
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable _1b 0
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withhelding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming :

{gambling} winnings to prize winners? | 1 | X
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form WS Transmittal of Wage and Tax Staternents, :
filed for the calendar ysar ending with or within the year covered by thisreturn ... | 29 348| .
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? ... ob | X
Note, If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to g-fila (see instructions} | ... : |

3a Did the organization have unrelated business grass incoms of $1,000 or more during the year? 3a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? f "No," to line 3b, provide an explanation in Schedule O 3b

4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authonity over, a

financial account in a foreign country {such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? ... [ 4a X
b If “Yes," enter the name of the foreign country:
Ses instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR). N B

5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . 5a X
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5h X
c I "Yes,” to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? T -

6a Does the organization have annual gross recelpts that are normally greater than $100 000 and dld the organlzatton sohcst

any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? TR I - - X
b If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contnbutlons or glfts
were not tax deductible? .. ... SO U U OOO TV TR UUROUROPUPR .- :)

7 Organizations that may recsive deductible contnbutlons under section 170(0} - |
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and services provided to the payor? | 7a X
b If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? | ... [T A | -
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible persenal property for which it was requwed

to file Form 82827 ... SSUUUPT I - X
d If “Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8232 f Ied dunng the year . | 7d | i : |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums ona personal beneflt contract? ... 1 Ta X
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? ... 7f X
g [f the organization raceived a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as requwed? _7g
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098 C‘? 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds, Did a donor advised fund maintained by the ) |
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? . ......ociiniiiiicceiees | 8

9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. s : |
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 49662 ... |98
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a denor, doner advisor, or related person‘? eeeeeseeeeeeeeeiiiiiiiie Loy

10 Section 501(c){7) organizations. Enter: '
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIl line 12 . i, | 102
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part Vill, line 12, for public use of ¢club facnlltles __________________ 10b
11 Section 501(c){12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders .., .. R I ki -
b Gross income from other scurces (Do not net amounts due or paid to olher S0Urces agalnst
amounts due or received from them.} | e etesettrreserraaterrattaaeaaannanaaes 11b
12a Section 4947(a){1} non-exempt chantable trusts. Is the orgamzallon filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10417 | 12a
b If "Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year  .................. |£h
13  Section 501(c}29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a lIs the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? | e e e e 13a
Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O :
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the
organization is licensed to issue qualified health PIaNS _..................cc.coveverirerercnnrnrnnnic s |18
¢ Enter the amount of reserves onhand ... v i
14a Did the orgamzauon receive any paymems for mdoor 1ann|ng services durlng the tax year‘? e i e e | 148 X
o .y 14;b
Form 990 (2017)

732006 11-28-17
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY
Form 990 (201 COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22-1777156 _ Page6
| Part VI | Governance, Management, and Disclosure roreach "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a “No" response
to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O, See instructions,

Check if Schadule Q contains a response of nots to any line in this Part VI
Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes

1a Enter the number of voting members of the gaveming body atthg end of the tax year ... . ... |_1a 14
If there are material differences in voling rights among members of the governing body, or if the governing
body delegated bread authority to an exacutive committee or similar committee, explain in Schedule O,

b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent ... ... 1b 14

2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employae have a family relationship or a business relationehip with any other

e e [epepeipe e o F E

officer, director, trustes, or key employee? o 2
3 Did the organization delegate control over management dutree cuetomerily periormed by or under 1he dlrect euper\rlsron
of officers, directors, or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? ... 3
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its goveming documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? ______________ 4
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? ... 5
& Did the organization have members or stockholders? 8
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or
more members of the governing body? | JTUTRUTUT B i I
b Are any governance decisions of the orgamzation reserved to {or sub;ect to approval by} members. stockholdere, or
persons other than the governing body? ... .. 7h
8  Did the organization conlemporaneousty docurment the mee!mgs hald or wrmen actlons undertaken durrng the year by the followmg: '
a The governing body? OSSOSO OO I - - P-4
b Each committes with authorlty to eci on behalf of 1he governlng body‘? [STRRUUTTUU I - - X
9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VI, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
i : ? 9 X
Yes | No
10a Did the organization have locat chapters, branches, or affiliates? | verenss 102 X
b If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures govemlng the actwrtiee of euch chapters, aﬂrliatee,
and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization’s exempt purposes? ... |10k
11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its govemning bady before ﬂling the form? 1Mal X
b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 920. | |
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? if *No," go toline 13 ........... e 12al X
b Were officers, directors, or irustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could gwe nse 1o contlicts‘? 20| X
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If *Yes, " describe
in Schedule O how thiswasdone ............. e oo ssees s seeseoeeeeessensessssssssesseressssrens | 126 X
13  Did the organization have a written whistleblower pollcy? OSSO I < P -
14 Did the organization have a written document retention and deelructlon poltcy? 14 | X
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by Independent o ’
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization's CEO, Executive Director, o top Management official ... _......cccomremreroeeeescororrrmssssssosossssesessnss | 3581 X
b Other officers or key employeas of the organization ... 156 | X

i "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule 0 (see |nstrucl|one)
18a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a 1
taxable entity during the year? ... o 180 X
b If *Yes," did the organization follow a wntten pohcy or procedure requrrlng 1he organrzaﬁon to e\raluate |ls parucnpatron '
in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps o safeguard the organization’s
e s with respect to su ments? 165
Section C. Disclosure
17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 9920 is required to be filed »-NJ
18  Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 950-T {Section 501(c)(3)s only} available
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
D Own website I____| Another's website |I| Upon request |:| Other faxplain in Schedufe O)
19  Describe in Schedule O whether (and if s, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial
statements available to the public during the tax year.
20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization’s books and records: >

THE QRGANIZATION - 208-454-7000
350 MARSHALL STREET, PHILLIPSBURG, NJ 08865
732006 11-28-17 Form 990 (2017)

10230617 758553 NORWESCAP 2017.05060 NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY COMM NORWESCL



NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY

orm 990 (2017) COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM _INC, 22-1777156 Page?
ompensation of Oficers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Gompensated
Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthisPark VIL . - L []

Section A. _ Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.
® List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of ameunt of compensation.

Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.
® | ist all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employse.”
® List the organization’s five turrent highest compensated employees {other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee} who received report-
ahle compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.
® List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
® List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the crganization,
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

List persons in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest compensated employees;
and former such persons.

| | Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.
{A) (B) {C) D) (€) {F}
Name and Title Average | oo Joosition Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | box, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and & diractar/trustec) from from related other
{list any ‘E the organizations compensation
hours for | 8| = organization {W-2/1099-MISG) from the
related | £ | § R g {(W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations| £ | § £lg and related
velow |Z|S|.|E|2E = organizations
i |3|2| 35|55 E
{1) THOMAS PEPE 2.00 ) —
CHAIR X X 0. 0. 0.
(2) JAMES BUEHLER 2.00
VICE PRESIDENT/SECRETARY X X 0. 0. 0.
(3) RICHARD CONLEY 2.00
ASSISTANT SECRETARY p.4 X 0. 0. 0.
{4) AILEEN ARSENAULT 2.00
TREASURER X X 0. 0. 0.
{5) MARPIN MILLER 2.00
DEPUTY TREASURER X X 0. 0. 0.
(6) ELYCIA LERMAN 2.00
TRUSTEE X 0. 0. 0.
(7) KAY REISS 2.00
TRUSTEE X 0. 0. 0.
{B) KAREN GAFFNEY 2.00
TRUSTEE X 0. 0. 0.
{9} EMILY PEREZ-IRIZARRY 2.00
TRUSTEE X 0. 0. 0.
{10} MARLEY AVONDOGLIO 2.00
TRUSTEE X 0. 0. 0.
{11} CHRISTINE NESBITT 2.00
TRUSTEE X 0. 0. 0.
(12) CHARLES BODDY 2.00
TRUSTEE X 0. 0. 0.
{(13) ROBERT ANSELMO 2.00
TRUSTEE X 0. 0. 0.
{(14) ROSANNA LAWRIE-FPROVO 2.00
TRUSTEE X 0. 0. 0.
(15) TERRY NEWHARD 35.00
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 1.00 X 127,200. 0.] 32,639.
{16} CORNELIO C, MONTEJO, JR, 39.00
CRIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 1.00 X 84,019. 0.] 13,174.
{17) MARK VALLI 39.00
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFPICER 1.00 X 0. 0. 0.
732007 11-20-7 Form 990 (2017)
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY

Foim 990 (2017) COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22-1777156  Page8
mﬁl‘?sicﬂon A, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Emplovees (continyed)
{A) 2] (C) ) (E) F)
Name and title Average | RO an one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | box, unlsss person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week Sfficer and  director/truatas) from from related other
Qistany |2 the organizations compensation
hours for | .5 = organization {W-2/1089-MISC) from the
related | & g z {W-2/1093-MISC) organization
organizations| 2 = g g‘” and related
bglow g 5 5|8 g% - organizations
line) [E|F|E|5[98| &
{18) SHARON GIACCHING 40.00
CFR8 DIRECTOR X 118,094. 0. 25,302,
{(19) STEPHEN SCHANOWOLF 40.00
IT DIRECTOR X 109,342, 0.] 33,152,
{20) PATRICK J, GROGAN 40.00
ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR X 108,106. 0.] 17,252.
(21} MANCY A, QUINN 40.00
WIC DIRECTOR X 107,421. 0. 24,683.
(22) GEORJEAN W, TRINKLE 40,00
DEPUTY DIRECTOR X 106,998. 0.] 24,618.
1b Sub-total R 761,180, 0.]170,820.
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Parl VII Section A > 0. 0. 0.
d_Total (add lines 1b_and 1} .. P 761,180. 0.] 170,820.
2  Total number of individuals (i ncludlng but not limited to 1hose Ilsted above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable
compensation from the organization » 6
Yeos | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustes, key employes, or highest compensated employse on |
line 187 if "Yos," complete Schedule J for such individual . 3 X
4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensatlon from the organlzatlon = . J
and related organizations greater than $150,0007 jf "Yes," complete Schedwle J for such individual .. e e 4 | X
6 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accnie compensation from any unrelated organization or mdividual for services . ' ]
rendered 1o the organization? jf *Yas * compieta Schedula ./ for SUCH DERSOD e, <] X _

Section B. Independent Coniractors

1 Complets this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from

the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year,

(A} {8} (C)
Name and business address NONE Description of services Compensation
2 Total number of indspendent contractors {including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization, - 0 SR
Form 920 (z017)
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY

22-1777156  Page 9

Form 990 {2017 COMMUNITY ACT_;ON PROGRAM, Il\'lC .
“ Statement of Revenue —

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthisPantVIll___.............

]

...............................................

Total revenus

e
B) (c}
Related or Unrelated
exempt function business
revenue revenus

D
Revenug egccluded
frorn tax under

S,

Federated campaigns ... |la

119,323,

Membershipduss ... [1b

Fundraising events ... [1¢

Related organizations 1d

Govemnment grants (contributions) 1e

15,081,764,

- 0o a0 oo

Al other contributions, gifts, grants, and
similar amounts not included above 1if

984 791,

€ Noncash contributions inoluded in lines Ya-1t $

h_Total Add lines 1a-1f

16,185,878,

2 g RENTS, FEES, FOOD DISTRIBUTION

Business Codel

900099

463,911,

463,911,

b

<
d
&
f

Al other program service revanue

g_Total. Add lings 2a-2f

>

463,911,

other similar amounts)

3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, and

5 Rovaltles ..o e

489,

489,

{i} Real

- N

4  Income from investment of tax -gxempt bond proceeds »
>

al

6 a Grossrents

iy Person. -

b Less: rental expenses

¢ Rental income or {Joss) .

d Net rental income or (loss)

>

7 a Gross amount from sales of

| (i) Securities

(i} Sther

assets other than inventory

b Less: cost or other basis
and sales expenses

¢ Gain or (loss) |

d Net gain or (Ioss)

including $ of
contributions reported on fine i¢). See
Part ¥, line18 . .................

8 a Grossincome from fundrajsmg events (not

b less direct expenses ... ...
¢ Net income or {loss) from'fundraising averts
9 a Gross income from gaming activities. See

Part IV, ine 19 ... .

b Less: direct expenses .

¢ Net incomne or (Joss) from gaming actlwtles

10 a Gross sales of inventory, less returns

andallowances | . ...

b Less: cost of goods sold
Net income or {logs) from sal

Other Revenue

f inventory

|

Miscellaneous Revenue

11a

usiness Code

b

c

d Allotherrevenue ...

1 venve. S tructions.

e Total. Addlines 11a¥1d . ...

>
»

16,650,278,

463,911, D, 489,

732009 11-28-17
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY

Form $90 (2017 COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM INC.,
| %a# X | Statement of I'-unctl'onal Expenses

Check if Schedule O contalne a ree_qu"lse or N

Do not include amounts reporfed on lines &b,
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part Vill.

Total expenses

te to any line in thie Parl |x
A B)

Program service
expenses

(C)
Management and
eneral expenses

Func!ralslng
expenses

1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments, See Part IV, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part W, line 22 ...
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV, fines 15and 16 |
Benefits paid to or formembers ...
Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees ... .
6 Compensation not included above, to dlsqualmed
persons {as defined under section 4956(f)(1)} and
persons described in section 4958{c}(3)(B)
Other salaries and wages . ...
Pension plan agcruals and contributions [inelude
section 401(k) and 403(b} employer contiibutions)
9 Otheremployee benefits ...
10 Payrolitaxes ...
11  Fees for services {(non- emp!oyees)
Management | ...
LOGal ..o ens et e
Accounting
Lobbying
Professional fundralsmg services See Pan IV hne 17
Investment management fees |
Other. {if line 11g amount exeeeds 10% of 1|ne 25
coluran {A} amount, list line 11g expenses on Sch 0.)
12 Advertising and promotion . ...
13 Offico expenses .. ...
14 Information technology ... ...
15 Royallos ...
16 QCCUPANCY _...........ccoveererenrrorareenrsnsiessreeeseens
17 Travel ...
18 Payments of travel or enteﬂainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings
Interest
Payments to affiates ..
Depraciation, deplstion, and amortization
Insurance

24  Other expenses. Ilermze expenses not cevered
above. (List miscellaneous expenses in ling 24e. If line
24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column (A)
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule . )

OTHER COSTS

b

= B |

@ o 00 To

BRES

1,185,156,

1,185,156.)

333,478,

297,698,

35,780,

9,253,218,

8,248,980,

1,004,238,

302,984.

272,736,

30,248.

1,778,804,

1,601,222,

177,582,

956,169,

860,712,

95,457,

7.842.

7.428,

414.

84,783,

80,309,

4,474.

518,555,

487,626,

30,928,

21,513.

21,302,

211.

135,805,

126,751.

9,054.

1,018,582,

986,920.

31,662.

219,208.

212,784.

6,424.

1,352,

1,352,

51,672,

51,692,

120,160,

140,145,

19,985,

534,341,

535,112,

5,220,

CONSUMABLE SUPPLIES

295,796,

280,255,

15,541.

EQUIPMENT

136,281,

134,568,

1,712,

o O o

e All other expenses

25 _ Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 thraugh 24e

16,975,684,

15,506,744,

1,468,940.

26  Joint costs. Complete this line only if the organization
reported in column (B} joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation.

oracichers o [ ] i soouing 0P 002450 ecezz)

Fa2010 11-26-17
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY

For COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22-1777156 page 11
PanX [Baoncethest —— == =
Check if Schedule O contains a response or noteto any line inthis Part X e 1
{A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash- noninterestbearing ... 1,792,936.] 1 1,859,670,
2 Savings and temporary cash Ivestments 58,839.| 2 78,214.
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net | 3
4  Accounts receivable, net ... 2,381,321.] 4 2,275,058,
5§ Loans and cther receivables from current and fon-ner ofﬁcers. directors, ' ' ' '
trustess, key employees, and highest compensated employess. Complete
Part Ii of Schedule L . 5
6 Loans and other receivables frorn other dlsquallfled persons (as deﬁned under :
section 4958((1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B}, and contributing
employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501{c)(9) voluntary
a employess’ beneficiary organizations {see instr). Complete Part ll of SshL [i]
g 7 Notesand loans receivable, net . e 7
8  Inventories for sale or use . O 17,890.] 8 19,356.
9  Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 2
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Complete Part Vi of Schedule D . 10a 2,630,380, - S
b Less: accumulated depreciation . 10b 2,175,041, 507,012, 10¢ 455,339,
11 Investmenis - publicly traded securities ... 11
12 Investments - other securitios. See Part IV, line 11 12
13 Investments - program-related. See Part IV, line 11 13
14 Intangibleassets . .. 14
16 Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 522,884.] 15 576,042,
116 Add lines 1 through 15 (muy ling 34} 5,280,882.] 16 5,263,679,
17 Accounis payable and acerued OXPONSOS .. . e 1,200,777.] 17 1,384,219,
18 Grantspayable | . ... e 18
19 Deferrad revenue . 20,562.] 1 255,997,
20 Tax-exempt bond Iuablllttes 20
21 Escrow or custodial account |Iabl|1t)' Complete Part IV ot Schedule D 21
o | 22 Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors, trustess,
é key employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified persons.
4 Complete Part Il of Schedule L _.......... 22
= | 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unretated third panies bbbbb 44,794.| 23 21,635,
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties | ... 24
25 Other liabilities (including faderal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of
ScheduleD . 7,076.1 25 6,359,
128 To Add lines 17 through 25 N 1,273,209.] 26 1,668,210,
Organlzations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check hera B [X] and ' o ' o
¢ complete lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34. ) _'_' ' : ) '
Q |27  Unrestrictod net @ssets ... 3,603,850.| 27 3,243,292,
i 28 Temporarily restricted net assets 403,823.] 28 352,177.
o | 22 Permanently restricted net assets 25
E Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASG 953), check here > l:'
5 and complete lines 30 through 34. -
£ |30 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds ..., 30
g 31  Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund _______________________ 31
% | 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 32
Z |33  Total net assets or und BAIANCES ... ........cccoormrvvevormrirsesnosssnesmersmemmsnnneees 4,007,673.] 33 3,595,469.
— Total liabilities ts/fund balances _ 5,280,882.] a4 5,263,679,
Form 990 (2017)
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY

Form 990 (2017} COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22—;777156 Page 12
econciliation of Net Assels '
Check if Schedule O contains a response or noteto any ling inthis Pat X0 ..o [E_
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIll, column (A), line 12) OO OO IO 16,650,278,
2 Total expenses (must equal Part X, column (&), N6 25) | ... essieeeesseeeaneneee |2 16,875,684,
3 Revenus less expenses. SUDIIaCt NG 2 oM e T e rio et et eeeee e neeen 3 -325,406.
4 Netasssts or fund balances at beginning of year must equal Part X fine 33 “column {A)) 4 4,007,673,
5 Netunrealized gains {losses) on investments 5
6 Donated services and use of facilities G
7 Invesiment expenses 7
& Prior period adjustments || 8
@  Other changes in net assets or ¢ fund balances {explaln in Schedule 0} 9 -86,798,
10 Net asssts or fund batances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X Iine 33
column(B) .. . 10 3,555,469,
nclal ‘Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contalins a response or note to any line inthis Pat XI__..o.oreennnnn s IE_

Yes | No

1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 920: |:| Cash |X| Accrual |:| Cther
if the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other,” explain in Schedule O.
2a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accourtant? ... | 23 X
If “Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed ona
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
] Separate hasis [ consolidated basis [ Both consotidated and separate basis
b Woere the organization’s financial statemments audited by an independent accountamt? ... 2| X
if "Yes," check a box helow to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate basis. ’ ’
consolidated basis, or both:
1 Separate basis X1 consolidated basis [ Both consolidated and separate basis
¢ If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a commities that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statemants and sslection of an independent accountant? | T - X
If the organization changed either its oversight pracess or selection process during the tax year, exp1a|n in Schedule O. '
3a Asaresult of 2 federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single Audit

Act and OMB Gircular A1332 ... . o L2l X
b If "Yes," did the organization undergo the requured audn or audlts? If the orgamzatlon dld not undergo the requnred audlt
or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits 3b| X
Form 990 (2017)
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- - - OB No. 1545-0047
iz:'igouo';ﬁ;o_m Public Charity Status and Public Support
Complete if the organization Is a section 501{c}{3} organization or a section 20 1 7
4247 (a){1) nonexempt charitable trust,
Departmant of the Treasury - Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Intarnal Revenus Service P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection -
Name of the organization NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY Employer identification number
COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22-1777156
a eason for Fublic Lhan LS (Al organizations must complete this part.} Seé instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.}
1 |:| A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in  section T70{b) 1){A)i).
2 [ Aschool described in section 170{bY 1AL {Attach Scheduls E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).)
s ]a hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170{b}{ 1){A)ii).
4 |:| A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in  section 170(b){ 1)(ANiii). Enter the hospital's name,
city, and state:

5 |:| An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170{b){ i{A)iv}. {Complete Part IL}
6 |:| A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b) 1){A){v).
7 IE An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in
section 170{b)}{ 1{ANvi}. (Complete Part IL.})
s (1 A community trust described in section 170(b} 1}{A){v]). (Complete Part Ii.)
o [] an agricultural research organization described in section 170{(b){1)(A)ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college
or university or a nen-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
university:
10 |:| An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from

activities related to its exempt functions - subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment
income and unrelated business taxable income {less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975.
See section 509(a)2). (Complete Part lil.)
1 ] an organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509{a}4).
12 l:l An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one or
more publicly supported organizations described in section 509{a){1) or section 509{a)(2). See section 508{a}{3). Check the box in
lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.
a |:| Type |. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization{s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting
organization. You musi complete Part 1V, Sections A and B.
b [ Type #l. A supporting arganization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supponting organization vested in the same parsons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.
[ |:| Type Il functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) {see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.
d |:| Type Il non-functionally Integrated. A suppotting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s}
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.
e D Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type i, Type Il
functionally integrated, or Type lll nenfuncticnally integrated supporting organization.

f Enter the number of suPported OrGaNIZAtIONS .............c.cocoeireieiicee e erenc s e ssrsss s ees s sese s ese e seese oo | |
g _Provide the following information about the supported organization(s}).
{Iy Name of supported (i) EIN {ili) Type of organization TS e Orgad alion Iied {v) Amount of monetary {vl) Amount of other
in your governing dogymeqt?
organization {described on IInesi‘l-‘LD Yes No |support fseo instructions) | support (see instructions)

Total : ' -
LLHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. 732021 16-08-77  Schedule A {Form 990 or 980-EZ) 2017
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY
o017 COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22~ 1777156 Page 2
Jrganizations
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the arganization failed to qualify under Part IIl. If the organization
fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part lIl.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beglnning in) {a}2013 {b} 2014 {c) 2015 (2016 {e) 2017 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not

include any "unusual grants.") 19976799.[17725901.[16714958,[16943336.[16185878.8B7549872.

2 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization's benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to

the organization without charge
4 Total, Add lines 1 through 3 19973799, 17725901.T6714958. 16943336./16185878.87549872.

5 The portion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
govermnmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included
on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11,

comn() ool . ' SRR D
8 Public su ling 5 trom line 4. | - g : : - @49872_'
Section B. Total %upport
Calendar year {or fiscal year beginning in) > {a) 2013 {b) 2014 {c) 2015 (d) 2016 (e} 2017 {f) Total
7 Amountsfromlined . [L9979799.17725901.[16714958.[16943336.[16185878.187549872.

8 Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources ., 23. 23. 159. 489, 694.

£ Met income from unrelated business
activitias, whether or not the
business is regulary carried on

10 Other incomea. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explain in Part V1)

11 Toial support. Add lines 7 thruugh 10 'f - ' - E 7550566,
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc, (see |n91rucilons) 12 | 4,976,171,

13 Flrst five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, thlrd fourth or tlfth tax yaar asa secllon 501(c){3)

rganization, chec oxand stop here ... | I
§ec¥'|on C. Compu%aﬁon oi FuEIIIc Suppor! Percentage

14 Public support percentaga for 2017 (line 6, column () divided by line 11, column ) ... |4 100.00 9
15 Public support percentage from 2016 Schedule A, Part |1, line 14 15 100.00 %
16a 33 1/3% support test - 2017, |f the organization did not check lhe box on ||ne 13 and Iine 14 ls 33 1!3% or more, check this box and
stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ... N I'i_fl
b 33 1/3% support test - 20186, If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a and Iine 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly suppoerted organization .. T ]

17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2097, If the organization did not check a box on Iine 13 163, or 16b and ||ne 14 is 10% or more,
and if the organization meets the *facts-and-circumstances" test, chack this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the organization
meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . ... . ]
b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2018, If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 173, and Ilne 15 is 10% or
more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the
organization rmeets the "facts-and-circumstances® test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . ........... > ]
18 Pri ndation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13. 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this nd see instructions
Schadule A (Form 920 or 990-EZ) 2017

732022 10-08-17
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY

hedule A (Form 990 or 99022017 COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM,  INC. 22-1777156 Page3
h &uppoﬂ Ecﬁeﬁ ule *or Organizations Described in Section k55 @)

{Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Ii. if the organization fails to

ualify under the tests listed betow:. 2 complete Part |1}
ection A. Public Support
Calendar year {or fiscal year beglnning in) p» {a}2013 (b) 2014 {c} 2015 {cl} 2016 {e) 2017 {f} Total

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any “unusual grants.™)

2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services per-
formed, or facilittes furnished in
any activity that is related to the
organization's tax-exempt purpose

38 Gross receipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or bus-
iness under section 513

4 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

6 Total. Addlines 1through 5 .
7a Amounts includad on lines 1, 2, and
3 received from disqualified persons

b Amounts Included on lines 2 and 3 recsived
irom other than disqualitied persons that
axcemd the greater of $5,000 or 196 of the
amount on ling 12 for the year

cAddlines 7aand7b ...

_Gﬂhlvﬁﬁ.\*miwﬂ
Section B. Total Support

Calendar year {or fiscal year beginning in) = {a) 2013 {b) 2014 {c) 2015 {d) 2016 {e} 2017 {f} Total

9 Amounts fromline &
10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments recaived on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources ||
b Unrelated business taxable income
(less section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975
cAddlines 10aand10b ...

11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included in line 10b,
whaether or not the business is
regularly carried on

12 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explainin Part V1) «ooeviienes

13 Total support. (Addlines 8, 10c, 11, and 12}

14 First five years. If the Form $90 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization,
chack this box and stop here . NN s R 3 B

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

15 Public support percentage for 2017 {line 8, column {f} divided by line 13, column () ............cceoecvreeen, 18 %
18 _Public sypport percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Partlil, line 15 i — 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2017 {line 10¢, column (f) divided by line 13, column ) ... 1T
18 Investment incomne percentage from 2016 Schedule A, Part [I, ling 17 18
19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2017, If the organization did not check the box on line 14 and Ilne 15 is more lhan 33 /3%, and line 17 is not

%
%

more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization .. ... » D

b 33 1/3% support tests - 2016, If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly suppaorted organization ... > |:|
foundation, If rganization did not check a box on ling 1 or 19b, check thi nd see instructions ..., | 1
732023 10-08-17 Schedule A (Form 990 or 950-EZ) 2017

10230617 758553 NORWESCAP 2017.05060 NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY COMM NORWESC1



NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY
Schedule A {Form 990 or 990-E7) 2017 COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22-1777156 Ppaged
[Part IV | Supporting Organizations
{Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part L. If you checked 12a of Part 1, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked 12b of Part |, complate Sections A and C. If you checked 12¢ of Part I, complete

Sectiong A D, and E. If you chacked 12d of Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)
Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing
documents? if “No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
cfass or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing refationship, explain. 1

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? i "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported
organization was describad in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2

3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501{c}(4), (B}, or (B}? f "Yes," answer . |
{b) and {c) below. 3a

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a}2)? ¥ "Yas," describe in Part ¥l when and how the
organization made the determination, 3b
¢ Did the organization snsure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B) S l
purposes? if "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to snsure such use. 3c
4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization®)? : |
“Yes," and if you checked 12a or 12b in Part I, answer (b) and (c} below. 4a
b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign )
supported organization? Jf “Yes,* describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion :
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4ab
¢ Did the organization support any foreign supported crganization that does not have an IRS determination :
under sections S01{c)(3) and 509(@)(1) or 27 i "Yas," explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170({c)2KB}
purposes, dc

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? ff *ves," s
answer (b) and (c) below (if applicabla). Also, provide detail in Part Vi, including () the narnes and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (i) the reasons for each such action;
(i} the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv} how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

b Type [ or Type !l only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already
designated in the organization's organizing document? 5b
¢ Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control? 5¢

6 Did the organization provide support {whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (i} its supported organizations, (i} individuals that are part of the charitable class
benefited by one or mare of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also
support or benefit one or more of the filing organization's supported organizations? jf *Yes, " provide dstail in .
Part Vi. 6

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor o
(defined in section 4958{(c){3)(C)), a family mamber of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with
regard to a substantial contributar? Jf "Yes, complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-E2), 7

8 Did the organization maks a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958} not described in line 772 . | |
If "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-£2). 8

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or mors )
disqualified persons as defined in section 4846 {other than foundation managers and organizations described
in section 509a)(1) or 2N? K “Yes," provide detaif in Part VI, 9a

b Did one or more disqualified persons {as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which - : |
the supporting organization had an interest? i “Yas, " provide detail in Part V. ob
¢ Did a disqualified person {as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit ) - |
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had aninterest? if "Yes," provide detail in Part V1. Q¢
10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section o
4943(f) (regarding ceitain Type 1l supporting organizations, and all Type Ill nonfunctionally integrated
supporting organizations)? Jf "Yes, " answer 70b below. 10a
b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to N ' |

1%

% ll;ll'.\ 1

742024 10-08-17 Schedule A (Form 290 or 990-EZ) 2017
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990.E7) 2017 COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22-1777156 pages
a Supporting Organizations ontinyeq)

Yes | No

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and {c)
below, the governing body of a supported organization?
b A family member of a person described in (a) above?

¢ A 35% contrelled entity of a person described in (a) or (b) above? f "Yes® toa b, or ¢ provide detail in Part VI, b [o]
Section B. Type 1 Supporting Organizations

-
-l
|

Y
-
=2

Yes | No

1 Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to :
regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization's directors or trustees at all times during the
tax year? jf "No," describe in Part Vi how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or
controfled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported organization,
describe how the powers to appoint and/or rernove directors or trustees were alfocated among the supported
organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. k|

2  Did the organization operats for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? Jf "“Yes," explain in
Part VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,

_smmmd.ma@ﬂﬂ&&wmﬂh&emm&o
Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Woere a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustess of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? Jf “No, " describe in Part VI how controf
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlied or managed

——the supported organization(s}.
Section D. All Type lll Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Did the organization pravide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, ) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the L
organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 1

2  Woere any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported '
organization(g) or (ily serving on the goveming body of a supported organization? if "No,* explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working refationship with the supported organization(s). 2

3 By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization’s supported organizations have a
significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's
incoms or assets at all times during the tax year? Jf "Yas, " describe in Part V1 the role the organization's

! e laved in thi |
Section E. Type Ill Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations
1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year {see instructions).
I:i The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Compiete line 2 pefow.
b [ The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complets line 3 balow.
¢ [] The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a government entity (see instructions),
2 Activities Test. Answer {a) and (b) below. Yes | No

a Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of ' di
the supported organization{s) to which the organization was responsive? Jf "Yes,* then in Part V1 identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the arganizalion was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that thase activities constituted substantially all of its activities.

b Did the activities describad in {a) constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement, ona or more
of the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? if *Yes," explain in Part Vl the
reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these
activities but for the organization's involverment, 2b

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (g} and {b} below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or slect a majority of the officers, directors, or

I

trustees of each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part V1. 3a
b Dld the organlzatlon exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each - |
: . ol NQaRizs s 1 3b
732025 10-08-17 Schedule A (Form 980 or 980-EZ) 2017
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY

hedule A (Form 990 or 990.E7) 2017 COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.
i ﬁaﬁ vV Type lll Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations

22-1777156 pages_

1 D Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 {explain in Part V1) See Instructions. All
other Type [l nenfunctionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.
Section A - Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year ® f,';;';ﬂ',l:,;ear
1__ Net short-term capital gain 1
2 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 2
3 Other gross incoms (see instructions) 3
4 Add lines 1 through 3 4
5§ Depreciation and depletion 3
8 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or
collection of gross income or for management, consetvation, or
maintenance of property held for production of incomns {see instructions) &
7 Other expenses {see instructions) 7
8 Adjusted Net Income {subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4} g
Section B - Minimumn Asset Amount (A) Prior Year ® ({itgtrigr;ta?)’ear
1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-axempt-use assets (¢
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year).
a_Average monthly value of securities 1a
b _Average monthly cash balances 1b
¢ _Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets ic
d_Total {add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c) 1d
@ Discount claimed for blockage or other
factors (explain in detail in Part VI):
2 Acquisition indebtednsss applicable to non-exermpi-Lise agsets 2
3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d 2
4 Cash deemed held for exempt use, Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount,
se9 instructions) 4
8  Net value of non-exernpt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3) 5
6 Muttiply line 5 by .035 6
7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 7
8 _Minimum Agset Amount {add line 7 to ling 6)
Section C - Distributable Amount Current Year
i__Adjusted net income for prior year {from Section A, line 8, Column A) 1
2 _ Enter 85% of line 1 2
3 Minimum asset amount for prior vear (from Section B, line 8 _Column A) 3
4 _ Enter greater of line 2 or ling 3 4
5 _Income tax imposed in prior year 5
6 Distributable Amount, Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction {see instructions) 5]

7 [:I Check here if the current year is the organization’s first as a non-functionally integrated Type lll supporting organization {seo
instructions).

732020 10-06-17
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY

Schedule r 990-E7) 2017 COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22-1777156 Page7
|_ Part V i Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 508(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (ontinued)
Section D - Distributions Current Year
1__Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purpoges
2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizakions, in excess of incoms from activity
3__Adminigtrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations
4 _Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use asgets
5 __ Qualified set-aside amounts {prior IRS approval reguired)
6 __Cther distributions [describe in Part VI). See instructions.
7__Total annual distributions. Add lings 1 through 6.
8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
{provide details in Part V). Ses instructions.
9 Distributable amount for 2017 from Section C, line 6
10 Line 8 amount divided by line 9 arnount

i) (i) (i)

i _ Distributi i i ietributi Underdistributions Distrlbutable
Saction E - Disfribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess Distributions Pre.2017 Amount for 2017

1 Distributable amount for 2017 from Section C, line 6

2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2017 {reason-
able cause required- explain in Part VI}. See instructions.

3 Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2017

b From 2013

¢ _From 2014

d_From 2015

e From 2018

1 Total of lines 3a through &

g_Applied to underdistributions of prior years
h _Applied to 2017 distributable amount

i_Carryover from 2012 not applied {sse instrictions)
| Remainder. Subtract lines 39, 3h, and 3i from 3f.

4 Distributions for 2017 from Section D,
line 7: 3

__a_Applied to underdistributions of prior years
b _Applied to 2017 distributable amount
¢ _Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4.

§ Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2017, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater
than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2017, Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, axplain in
Part V. Ses instructions.

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2018, Add lines 3j
and 4¢.

& Breakdown of line 7:

__a_Excess from 2013
b_Excess from 2014
c_Excess from 2015
d_Excess from 2016

e_Excess from 2017

Schedule A {Form 990 or $90-EZ) 2017
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY
Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-673 2017 COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22-1777156 pPages

[PartVl | Supplemental Information. provide the explanations required by Part Il, line 10; Part Il, line 17a or 17b; Part ll, line 12;
Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3¢, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, Sc, 113, 11b, and 11¢; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C,
line 1; Part IV, Section D, ||nas 2 and 3; Part IV, Secﬂon E, lines 1¢, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1a; Part ¥V,
Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any addmonal information.
(See mstructions}

732028 10-08-17 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2037
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Schedule B Schedule of Contributors

OMEB No. 1545-0047

(Form 920, 990-EZ, B Attach to Form 890, Form 990-EZ, or Form 990-PF,

or 990-PF) . .
o et of the Treasury P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. 2 0 1 7
tntemal Revenus Service
Name of the organization Employer identlfication number
NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY
COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22-1777156
Organization type (check one):
Filers of: Section:
Form 990 or 990-EZ (X] soi {e) 3 ) (enter number) organization
] 4947(2){1) nonexerpt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation
(1 527 political organization
Form 980-PF |:| 501{c)(3) exempt private foundation
|:| 4947(a}{1) nonexernpt charitable trust treated as a private foundation
[] 501(c)3) taxable privats feundation

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule.
Note: Only a section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10} organization can check bexes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. Ses instructions.

General Rule

£ Foran organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that recsived, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000 or more {in money or
property) from any ene contributor, Complete Parts | and H. See instructions for determining a contributor's total contributions.

Special Rules

@ For an organization described in section 501(c)(3} filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33 1/3% support test of the regulations under
sections 509(a)(1) and 170{b)(1HA)V), that checked Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ), Part I, line 13, 16a, or 16b, and that received from
any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1} $5,000; or {2) 2% of the amount on (i) Form 990, Part VI, line 1h;
or (ji) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts 1 and Il

|:| For an organization described in section 501(cH7), (8), or (10) filing Form 920 or 980-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the
year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, literary, or educational purposes, or for
the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts |, II, and 1l}.

D For an organization described in section 501{c)(7}, (8}, or {10} filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the
year, contributions exclusively for religious, charitable, ete., purposes, but no such contributions totalad more than $1,000. If this bex
is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received during the year for an exclusively religious, charitable, etc.,
purpose, Don't complete any of the parts unless the General Rule applies to this organization because it received ponexclusively
religious, charitable, ete., contributions totaling $5,000 or more during the year ... >3

Caution; An organization that ismt covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B {Form 990, 880-EZ, or 990-FF),
but it must answer "No" on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 990-PF, Part |, line 2, to
certify that it doesn't meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF),

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notics, see the instructions for Form 980, 990-EZ, or 990-PF.  Schedule B (Form 990, 930-EZ, or 890-PF} (2017}

723454 11-01-17



Schedule B (Form 920, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2017) Page 2

Name of organization Employer identification number
NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY
COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22-1777156
Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.
@ (b} (c) {d
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
1 | SERVICES Person  [X]
Payroll [
26 FEDERAL PLAZA $ 7,125,536, Noncash [ ]
{Complete Part Il for
NEW YORK, NJ 10278 noncash contributions.)
(a) (b} {c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY
2 | AFFAIRS Person X1
Payroll 1
PO BOX 800 $ 3,036,995, Noncash [ ]
{Complete Part I for
TRENTON, NY 08625 noncash contributions.)
(a} (b) {c} {d
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total coniributions Type of contribution
3 NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH Person x]
Payroll ]
PO BOX 360 $ 2,383,422, Noncash [ ]
{Complete Part M for
TRENTON, NJ 08625 noncash contributions.)
(a) {b) {c} (d}
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN
4 | SERVICES Person  [X]
Payroll J
222 SOUTH WARREN STREET, PO BOX 700 $ 1,063,665, Noncash [ ]
(Complete Part il for
TRENTON, NJ 08625 noncash contributions.)
(a}) (b) {e} (d}
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total confributions Type of contribution
Person ]
Payroli —
$ Noncash [ ]
{Complete Part I for
noncash contributions.)
{a) b} {c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of confribution
Person ]
Payroll ]
$ Noncash [ ]
{Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)
- —

723452 11-01-17 Schedule P {Form 990, 990-EZ, or 980-PF) (2017)
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Schedule B {Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF} {2017} Page o
Name of organization Employer identification number

NORTHEWEST NEW JERSEY

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22-1777156
Noncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part Il if additional space is needed.
{a)
(e}
:oor;l D ipti f - h iven FMV {or estimate) Date r{:}ceived
P gscription of noncash property givel {See instructions.)
@
(©)
f:';r; Descrintion of (b) . i FMV (or estimate) Dat r(d) ved
Part | escription of noncash property given (See instructions.) ate receive:
{a)
(c)
No. b} . {d)
- R FMV (or estimate)
IE:;;::.I:'!| Description of noncash property given (See Instructions.) Date received
{a)
©
:0061 Description of o h i FMV (or estimate) Dat - ived
— escription of noncash property given (See instructions.) ate receiv
(a)
(e)
No. b} (d)
FMV (or estimate} .
;r::l Description of noncash property given (See Instructions.) Date received
{a)
]
::r;‘ Deseriotion of (b) " i FMV {or estimate) Dat o o
o escription of noncash property given (See instructions.) ate receiv
-

729453 41-01-47

10230617 758553 NORWESCAP

e A
Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 880-FF} (2017)
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Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 980-PF} (2017)

Name of organization
NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY
COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

10230617 758553 NORWESCAP

Page 4
Employer Identification number

22-1777156

Exclusively teliglous, charitable, etc., contribubions to organizations deser n section %07(¢
the year from any one sontributor. Gomplete calumns {a) through (e} and the folluwmg line entry. For mtm; >3

complating Part Ill, enter the tolal of exclusively rellgious, charitable, sic., contributions of $1,000 of less for the year. (Enler ni5 info. ence.)

Use duplicate copies of Part IIl if additional space is needed.
{a) No.
l;r:rl;nl {b) Purpose of gift {c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
(&) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
{a) No.
I!'r:rTl {b) Purpose of gift {c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
{e) Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
{a) No.
Igraor'tnl {b) Purpose of gift {c) Use of gift {d} Description of how gift is held
{e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of fransferor to transferee
{a) No.
If’raorTl {b) Purpose of gift {c) Use of gift {d) Description of how gift is held
{e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationghip of transferor to transferee
723454 11-01-17 Schedule B (Form 990, 980-EZ, of 990-PF) (2017)
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SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements OB Mo BT
{Form 980) P Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 980, 20 1 7
Part IV, line§, 7,8, 9, ﬁJA‘Raaé l'tl ;IL:,F‘L :::r; ;;g, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 7 : o 5T
?n:m rf.f'ffe".fﬂgﬁ’i“ /E r instructions st informa Inspection |
Name of the organization NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY Employer identification number
COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC, 22—17771'.1.56
Part Drganizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complste if the

organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part [V, ling 6.

{2} Donor advised funds {b) Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year | .
Aggregate value of contrlbutions to {dunng year}
Aggregate valua of grants from (during year)
Agaregate value atend of year ...

Did the organization inform all donors and donor adwsors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds

are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? | |:| Yes [ JINe
6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in wyiting that grant funds can be used only

for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor adviser, or for any other purpose conferring

impermissible pri nefit? - ] Yes [INo
| Part Il | Conservation Easements. Complets lt the organlzatlon answered "Yss“ on  Form 990 Part IV Ilne 7.

1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the arganization {check all that apply).
I:l Preservation of land for public use {e.g., recreation or sducation) D Preservation of a historically important land area
[ protection of natural habitat {7 Preservation of a certified historic structure
|:| Preservation of opan space
2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the last

o0 -

day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year
a Total PUMber of CONSErvation BASEMENTS ... ciieiiieecsee st rssrsasssamsssssssssseseranmesensesocseceonre i
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements 2b
¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure mcluded in {a} o L2e
d Number of conservation easements included in {c} acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a htstorlc structure
listed in the National Register ... 2d
3 Number of conservation easements modn" ed transterrecl released exnngulshed or termlnated by the organizatlon during the tax
year P
4 Number of states whers property subject to conservation easement is located I
8§ Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of
violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? | ... RUVOTI I:' Yas |:| No
6 Staff and voluntesr hours devoted to monitering, inspecting, handling of wolations, and snforclng oonssr\ration easements during the year
- ___
7 Amount of expenses Incurred in monitoring, ingpecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
»$
8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170{h)4)B)()
and section 170AENN? ... Cves [no

9  In Part XlIl, describe how the organization reports conservatlon easements in its revenue and expense staternent and balance sheet, and
include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the organization’s accounting for

canservation easements.
- Orgam!zatlons Maintaining Gollections of Art, Historical 1reasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.
1a If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not 1o report in its revenue staternent and balance sheet works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, pravide, in Part XIII,
the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted undar SFAS 116 (ASG 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art, historical
treasures, or othar similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the following amounts
refating to thesa items:

(i) Revenus included on Form 990, Part VI M8 1 ..o eeccerssissessessscessnesenneeeee. P $
(i) Assetsincluded in Form 990, Part X ... T

2  If the organization received or held works of art, hlstorlcal treasures, or other snmilar assets tor 1" nanmal galin, provide
the following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items:

a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VL e 1 .o ssessssssseeessseesssmeenssennisece. PP $
b_Assets included in Form 990, Part X " - »_3_
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2017

732051 10-09-17
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY
COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

le D (Form 990} 2017
ﬁt‘%ﬁ-ﬁ——]—_—_'_—a —— -

22-1777156 page?

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets goninueg)

3 Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection items

{check all that apply):
a [ Public exhibition
b [J Scholarly research

c |:| Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in Part XII.
6 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets

d [ Loan or exchange programs

e D Other

reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

)ction?

|:|Yg_ [ 1no

[Part IV { Escrow al‘ld CUStOdlal Arrangements Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or

1a Is the organization an agent, trustes, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included

on Form 990, Part X? ...

b i "Yes," explain the arrangement in Parl XIII and oomplete the follewmg table°

€ BogiNMING DAIANGE . iieeiiisieseesseteeseesseereotseseesssonensensebonsnssnsessasasesseasaessesesebessbsbbbetsantebesesiees
d ADDIIONS AUINGING YOAE | et s e e oo betsesbarssssssses b etassamsbansebe s renesaon et s srans e renasnsnnss

e Distributions during the year
f Ending balance |

2a Did the orgamzatnon mclude an amount on Ferrn 990, Part X I|ne 21 1or QSCrow or custodial account Ilablhty?
rrangement in Part Xl

b if "Yes," explai

k here if the explanation h

D Yes |:| No
Ameunt
1c
1id
1e
1f
(] Yes [ Ino
“““““ ]

n provided on Pait
artV | Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, Iine 10.

Beginning of year balance
Contributions ...,

Grants or scholarships
Other expenditures for facilities
and programs

T o 0T

Net investment earnlngs. ga:ns, and [esses

| (a) Current year

{b} Prior year

{c) Two years back

o) Three years back

{e) Four years back

Administrative expenses

-

g End of year balance

2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance {Jine 1g, colurnn (&) held as:

a Board designated or quasi-endowment P

b Permanent endowment P>

%

%

¢ Temporarily restricted endowment

%

The percentages on linas 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should squal 100%.

da Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and adrministered for the organization
by: Yes | No
(i) UNTOIAIOd OFGANIZAIONS ..o eesiceresenessessesseessesasasesseessnssssssssaessssasssssasressesssessssansressesssosssosssersrassssonsasncess FOBUL
{il} related organizations ... . | 3alii)
b If “Yes" on line 3afi}, are the related organizatione lleted as requu'ed on Schedule R? 3b
4 Des s andowment funds.
' Btuldlngs, and
Complets if the organization answered "Yes" on Forrn 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 290, Part X, ling 10,
Description of property {a) Cost or other (b) Cost or other {c) Accumulated (¢} Book value
hasis (investment) hasis (other) depreciation
18 LANA e 158,816. _ 158,816,
b BUIGINGS ..o 942,323. 753,860, 188,465.
¢ Leasehold improvements ...
d EQUIPITNE ....oooooooooeoeeeeeee e essssssnnenes 394,082, 394,082, 0.
e_Other 1,1 135 157.] 1,027,099, 108,058,
o), Add i > 455 339,
Schedule D {Form 990) 2017

732052 10-08-17
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY

chedule D (Form 990) 2017 COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, TNC. 22-1777156 Page3
[Part VII| Investments - Other Securities. '
Complete if the organization answersd "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b, See Form 990, Part X, line 12.
{a) Description of security or category finciuding name of security) {b) Book value {c} Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives
{2) Clossly-held equity interests
{3) Other

A

8)

{C)

Dy

{E)

{F}

(G)

(H)

otal. {Col. (b} must equal Form $90, Pari X, col. (B) Jine 12 ' ' . ]
“ Investments - Program Related.
Complete if the organization angwered "Yes" on Form 990, Part [V, line 11c. Ses Form 990, Part X, line 13.
{a} Description of investment {b} Book value {c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

{1)
2)
3)
{4
(5
(6)
(7}
(8)

)
Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Pait B) line 13, ]
Part ther Assets.
Complets if the organization answerad "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, ling 114, See Form 990, Part X, ling 15,
{@) Description {h) Book value
(1 RELATED PARTY RECEIVAEBLE 576,042,
{2)
(3}
(4)
—18
{8}

> 576,042,

Complete if the organlzatlon answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 111. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.

1. {a} Description of liability {b} Book value
{1} Federal income taxes _
@ SECURITY DEPOSITS PAYABLE 6,359,
{3}
£Y]
5
6
4]
=)}
O
Total. (Cofumn (b} must equal Form 990, Part X, col (BYiN@25) ............. B 6,359. .
2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part X, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the
organization's liabllity for uncertain jtions under FIN 48 (ASC 740). Che if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part Xl

Schedule D (Form 990} 2017

TA2083 10-09-17
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10230617 758553 NORWESCAP

NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22-1777156 Page 4
evenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.

Complets if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Pait IV, ling 12a.
1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements .. ... i,
Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part Vil line 12:

a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 2a

b Donated services and use of faciliies | ..., |20

¢ Recoveries of prior year grams .. |2

d Other (Describe in Part Xil) SR UOU OOV

@ AJAIINGS 2athroUgN 20 . ... ... rese st sse st e | R
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 3
4 Amounts inciuded on Form 990 Parl VIII Ilne 12 but not on ||ne1

a Investment expenses not included on Form 980, Part Vil line¥b ... ... I 4a

b Other (Describein Part XIIL) e m:

¢ Add Ilnes4aand4b OO PO OO OU U OU USSP ROUOPOUOPORPPOUPPTU L. -

eturn.
Complets if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 980, Part IV, line 12a,

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements ... et
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

a Donated services and use of facilitios ... ... ’ﬁ

b Prior year ajUSIMENtS ... .ot nreennce ol

G OHIBILOSBBS | e e e e e s e esbsbass b s ar e s aeesraraeaseere et em e smer b asssaobs L_Z

d Other (Describe INPat XHL) et e

€ AdAINGs 2B TNMOUGN 20 || ..o sas st ess s s sass s st enmernsras s rssssassaen resasssasaresessesssemnennnnnnerre | B
3 Subtract line 2e fromline 1 3
4 Amounts included on Form 990 Parl |x, Ilne 25 but not on Ilne1

a Investment expenses not included on Form 980, Pant Vil line¥b ... ... I 4a

b Other (Desetibe N PAXIL) .. ..o coesessssssss oo {_ab

C ADliNes daand db ... bbbt et b beane et ae e e iervrerissinreees 4c
5 | @xpenses. Add lines Sand 75 1 ORI T T T OO OO TR oy 5

Part Xlll| Supplemental Information.

Provide the descriptions required for Part II, lines 3, 5, and &; Part 11}, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI,
lines 2d and 4b; and Part XlI, lines 2d and 4b, Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

PART X, LINE 2:

NORWESCAP IS EXEMPT FROM INCOME TAXES UNDER SECTION 501(C){(3) OF THE

INTERNAL REVENUE CODE AND ALSQ EXEMPT UNDER TITLE 15 OF THE STATE OF NEW

JERSEY CORPORATIONS AND ASSOCIATIONS NOT-FOR-PROFIT ACT.

THE ORGANIZATION FOLLOWS STANDARDS THAT PROVIDE CLARIFICATION ON

ACCOUNTING FOR UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME TAXES RECOGNIZED IN THE

ORGANIZATION'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. THE GUIDANCE PRESCRIBES A

RECOGNITION THRESHOLD AND MEASUREMENT ATTRIBUTE FOR THE RECOGNITION AND

MEASUREMENT OF A TAX POSITION TAKEN, OR EXPECTED TO BE TAKEN, IN A TaX

RETURN, AND ALSCO PROVIDES GUIDANCE ON DE-RECOGNITION, CLASSIFICATION,

INTEREST AND PENALTIES, DISCLOSURE AND TRANSITION. THE ORGANIZATION'S

#
792054 10-08-17 Schedule D (Form 890} 2017
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY

fe D (Form 990} 2017 COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22-1777156 pPages
Iiiaﬁ k‘" | Supplemental information continyeq)

POLICY IS TO RECOGNIZE INTEREST AND PENALTIES ON UNRECOGNIZED TAX BENEFITS

IN INCOME TAX EXPENSE. NO INTEREST AND PENALTIES WERE RECORDED DURING THE

FISCAL YEARS ENDED 2018 AND 2017. AT AUGUST 31, 2018 AND 2017, THERE ARE

NO SIGNIFICANT INCOME TAX UNCERTAINTIES.

Schedule D (Form 890) 2017
732055 10-08-17
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SCHEDULE J Compensation Information OME No. 1645-0047

(Form 980} For certaln Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees
p Complete if the organization answered "Yeos" on Form 880, Part IV, line 23.

Depanment of the Traasury P> Attach to Form 990. ' OFI'e" to Public
Intarnal Revenue Servics P Go 1o wwwirs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. nspection

Name of the organization NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY Employer identification number
COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22—17771.56

[Part1 | Questions Regarding Compensation

1a Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form 980,
Part VIl, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part Il to provide any relevant information regarding these items.
[ First-class or charter travet ] Housing allowance or residence for personal use
l:‘ Trave! for companions |:| Payments for business use of personal residence
™) Tax indemnification and gross-up payments [ Heath or social ¢lub dues or initiation fees
] Discretionary spending account [] Personal services (such as, maid, chauffeur, chef)

Yes | No

b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or
reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part lllto explain ... i |-

2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all diractors,
trustees, and officers, including the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked online 1a? ... 2

8 Indicate which, if any, of the following the filing organization used to establish the compensation of the organization's
CEQ/Exacutive Director. Check all that apply. Do not chack any boxes for methods used by a related organization to
establish compensation of the CEQO/Exacutive Director, but explain in Part Hll.

1 Compensation committee [ written employment contract
] Independent compensation consultant ] Compensation survey or study
[ Form 990 of other organizations X Approval by the board or compensation committae

4 During the year, did any person listed on Form 920, Part VW, Section A, ling 1a, with respect to the filing
organization or a related organization: .

a Raceive a severance payment or change-of-confrol payment? ... SO O RO OO U TTUUOUOTPROTOUPUR I :: |
b Participate in, or receive payment from, a supplemental nonqualified retlrernent plan? e it L4y
¢ Participate in, or receive paymant from, an equity-based compensation arrangement? ... e, | L4
If “Yes* to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Parl III '

LB by

Only section 501(c)(3}, 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29} organizations must complete lines 5-9,
§ For persons listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the revenues of:
8 THO OTGANZANONT .. oo eecesseeee e e oo beease s bss s 2428 rene s st b0 5a X

b Any related organization? — Eb X
If "Yes" on line 5a or 5b, describe in Part |I1 ) -
8 For persons listed on Form 980, Part VII, Section A, line 14, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the net earnings of:
a Theorganization? ... ... 6a X
b Any related organization? 6b X
If "Yes" on line 6a or 6b, describe in Part |I| ’
7 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nonfixed payments .
not described on lines 5 and 67 If "Yes,” describe inPart I . .. O I X
8 Were any amounts reported on Form 890, Part VI, paid or aocrued pursuant to a oontract that was subject to the . |
initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4()(3)7 if "Yes," describs inPart Il ... 8 X
9 [f "Yes" on line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in ' | l
Regulations section 53.4958-6{cl? s 2]
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see ihe Instructions for Forrn 990. Schedule J (Form 900) 2017

T2 10-17-17
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SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ |22l —
(Form 990 or 990-E2) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 20 1 7
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
Department of the Treasury P Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ, Open to Public
Antomat Revarne Servios 2 Go to www.rs.gov/Form090 for the Iatest information, Inspection
Name of the organization NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY Employer identiflcation number
COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22—1777156

FORM 990, PART I, LINE 1, DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION MISSION:

AND CHANGE LIVES FOR LOW-INCOME INDIVIDUALS AND FAMILIES IN HUNTERDON,

MORRIS, SOMERSET, SUSSEX AND WARREN COUNTIES. NORWESCAP SERVES OVER

30,000 INDIVIDUALS ANNUALLY IN SIX CRITICAL DOMAINS: EDUCATION;

EMPLOYMENT; FINANCIAL CAPACITY BUILDING; HEALTH & NUTRITION; HOUSING &

ENERGY SERVICES; AND, VOLUNTEERISM. NORWESCAP IS DESIGNATED BY THE

FEDERAL GOVERNMENT AS A 'COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM' OR CAP AGENCY WHICH

PROVIDES ACCESS TO MANY FEDERALLY-FUNDED PROGRAMS LIKE THE COMMUNITY

SERVICES BLOCK GRANT, HEAD START, LOW INCOME HOUSING & ENERGY

ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (LIHEAP); WEATHERIZATION; WOMEN INFANTS AND

CHILDREN; AND OTHERS.

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 1, DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION MISSION:

DOMAINS: EDUCATION; EMPLOYMENT; FINANCIAL CAPACITY BUILDING; HEALTH &

NUTRITION; HOUSING & ENERGY SERVICES; AND, VOLUNTEERISM., NORWESCAP IS

DESIGNATED BY THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT AS A 'COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM®' OR

CAP AGENCY WHICH PROVIDES ACCESS TO MANY FEDERALLY-FUNDED PROGRAMS LIKE

THE COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT, HEAD START, LOW INCOME HOUSING &

ENERGY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (LIHEAP); WEATHERIZATION; WOMEN INFANTS AND

CHILDREN; AND OTHERS.

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 4B, PROGRAM SERVICE ACCOMPLISHMENTS:

CAREERS. NORWESCAP SERVES AS THE CHILD CARE RESOURCE AND REFERRAL

AGENCY FOR THREE COUNTIES (SERVING OVER 21,000 INDIVIDUALS) AND AS THE

HEAD START PROVIDER FOR OVER 550 CHILDREN IN FOUR COUNTIES.

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990 or 980-EZ) (2017)
732211 00-07-17

10230617 758553 NORWESCAP 2017.05060 NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY COMM NORWESC1



Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2017) Page 2

Name of the organizaton NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY Employer identification number
COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22-1777156

EMPLOYMENT ; AT NORWESCAP WE BELIEVE EVERYONE IN OUR COMMUNITY SHOULD

BE ABLE TO FIND A HIGH-QUALITY JOB THAT PROVIDES A LIVING WAGE. WE WORK

WITH ADULTS TQ HELP THEM BUILD SKILLS, FIND BETTER EMPLOYMENT

OPPORTUNITIES, RE-ENTER THE WORKFORCE, AND MAINTAIN THEIR EMPLOYMENT

OVER TIME.

FINANCIAL CAPACITY BUILDING: AT NORWESCAP, WE BELIEVE PEOPLE NEED TO

BUILD SAVINGS AND MAKE INVESTMENTS THAT CAN HELP THEM MOVE AHEAD IN

LIFE. WE HELP INDIVIDUALS DO THIS BY BUILDING FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

SKILLS, PROVIDING RESQURCES TO HELP PEOPLE SAVE MONEY, SAVE ON TAXES

AND DISTRIBUTING SMALL LOANS TQ INCREASE ASSETS AND BUILD NET WORTH.

TO DATE, NORWESCAP HAS HELPED CLIENTS LEVERAGE OVER $10,000,000 IN

ASSETS.

HEALTH & NUTRITION: AT NORWESCAP WE BELIEVE EVERYONE NEEDS ACCESS TO

HEALTHCARE AND SUPPORT TO MAINTAIN HEALTHY BEHAVIORS. WE HELP PEOPLE

CONNECT INDIVIDUALS AND FAMILIES TO DOCTORS AND DENTISTS, PROVIDE

PRENATAL SUPPORT FOR NEW MOTHERS, PROVIDE EDUCATION ABOUT CANCER AND

CHRONIC DISEASE, AND WORK TO ENSURE THAT EVERYONE IN OUR REGION HAS

ACCESS TO ADEQUATE FOOD. THE NORWESCAP FOODBANK PROVIDES OVER

2,000,000 POUNDS OF FOOD ANNUALLY TO OVER 110 COMMUNITY PARTNERS IN

THREE COUNTIES.

HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT VISION: AT NORWESCAP WE BELIEVE THAT

EVERYONE NEEDS A SAFE AND AFFORDABLE PLACE TQ LIVE. WE HELP PEOPLE

FIND AFFORDABLE HOUSING, MAINTAIN THEIR UTILITY BILLS, WEATHERIZE AND

IMPROVE THE SAFETY OF THEIR HOMES AND STAY IN THEIR HOME LONGER. WE

ALSO PARTNER WITH QOUR LOCAL COMMUNITIES AND NEIGHBORHOQDS TO FIND WAYS
732212 09-07-17 Schedute O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2017)
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Schedule © (Form 990 or 990-£2} (2017) _Pageg
Name of the organizaton NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY Employer identification number

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22-1777156

TQ MAKE THEM SAFER AND BETTER PLACES FOR PEQPLE TO LIVE,

VOLUNTEERISM: AT NORWESCAP WE BELIEVE THAT EVERYONE SHOULD HAVE THE

OPPORTUNITY TO CONTRIBUTE TQ OUR COMMUNITIES. WE CREATE OPPORTUNITIES

FOR PEOPLE OF ALL BACKGROUNDS AND INCOME-LEVELS TO PARTICIPATE IN

ADVISORY COMMITTEES, VOLUNTEER AT QUR LOCATIONS, AND ADVOCATE FOR

CREATING COMMUNITIES THAT THRIVE.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 1l1B:

NORWESCAP HAS ITS FORM 950 PREPARED BY AN QUTSIDE ACCOUNTING FIRM AND HAS

ESTABLISHED THE FOLLOWING REVIEW PROCESS TQO ENSURE THAT THE INFORMATION

REPORTED IS COMPLETE AND ACCURATE. WHEN THE FORM 990 HAS BEEN PREPARED,

REVIEWED BY MANAGEMENT AND IS READY TQO BE FILED WITH THE INTERNAL REVENUE

SERVICE, IT IS PROVIDED TO THE MEMBERS OF THE ORGANIZATION'S GOVERNING BODY

FOR COMMENTS PRIOR TO ITS SUBMISSION. THE GOVERNING BODY IS PROVIDED WITH

A REASONABLE AMOUNT OF TIME TO REVIEW THE FORM 990. ANY COMMENTS ARE THEN

GROUPED, SUMMARIZED AND PROVIDED THROUGH MANAGEMENT OF THE QUTSIDE

ACCOUNTING FIRM. ANY APPLICABLE ISSUES ARE ADDRESSED UNTIL THE RETURN IS

FINALIZED AND APPROVED FOR FILING.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 12C:

NORWESCAP CURRENTLY HAS IN PLACE A CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY WHICH IT

REGULARLY MONITQRS AND ENFORCES. THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MANDATES THAT ALL

MEMBERS OF MANAGEMENT AND THE GOVERNING BODY ANNUALLY SIGN THE CONFLICT OF

INTEREST POLICY AND DISCLOSE ANY POTENTIAL OR ACTUAL CONFLICTS THAT MAY

EXIST. IF A POTENTIAL OR ACTUAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST EXISTS, THE GOVERNING

BODY AND MANAGEMENT WILL INVESTIGATE THE ISSUES. IF A CONFLICT OF INTEREST

IS DETERMINED TO EXIST, MANAGCEMENT AND THE GOVERNING BODY WILL BE NOTIFIED
732292 09-07-17 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2017}
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Schedule Q (Form 990 or 990-EZ} (2017) Page 2
Name of the organization NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY Employer identification number

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22-1777156

IMMEDIATELY. THE MEMBER WILL NOT BE ALLOWED TO VOTE OR BE PART OF ANY

DECISION ABOUT ANY ISSUE IDENTIFIED AS A POTENTIAL OR ACTUAL CONFLICT.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 15:

THE COMPENSATION OF THE ORGANIZATION'S CEO AND OTHER KEY EMPLOYEES IS

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES, AN INDEPENDENT BODY.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 18:

NORWESCAP MAKES ITS FORM 990 AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC REVIEW AS REQUIRED UNDER

SECTION 6104 OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE CODE UPON WRITTEN REQUEST AT

THE ORGANIZATION'S OFFICES AT 350 MARSHALL STREET, PHILLIPSBURG, NJ 08865.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 19:

NORWESCAP MAKES ITS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, GOVERNING DOCUMENTS AND CONFLICT

OF INTEREST POLICY AVAILABLE UPON WRITTEN REQUEST AT THE ORGANTIZATION'S

OFFICES AT 350 MARSHALL STREET, PHILLIPSBURG, NJ 08865.

FORM 990, PART XI, LINE 9, CHANGES IN NET ASSETS:

BAD DEET EXPENSE -86,798.

OPENING BALANCE ADJUSTMENT

TOTAL TO FORM 990, PART XI, LINE 3 -86,798.

FORM 990, PART XII, LINE 2C:

THE OVERSIGHT PROCESS HAS NOT CHANGED FROM THE PRIOR YEAR.

732212 08-07-17 Schedule O (Form 290 or 990-EZ) (2017)
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY

Schedule R {Form 990) 2017 COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. 22-1777156 Pages
 Part VI | Supplemental Information.

Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule R, See instructions,

732165 00-14-17 Schedule R (Form 980) 2017
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293 Eisenhower Packway
Livingston, NJ 07039-1711

g S OBEL & CO LLC Office: 973-994-9494

Fax: 973-994-1571
wwwSobelCoLLC.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
Northwest New Jersey Community Action Program, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Phillipsburg, New Jersey

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Northwest New Jersey
Community Action Program, Inc. ("NORWESCAP") (a nonprofit organization) and
Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of August 31,
2018, and the related consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to NORWESCAP's preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of NORWESCAP’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

“Ainia)

et 4 gl e



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present faitly, in all
material respects, the financial position of NORWESCAP and Subsidiaries as of August 31,
2018, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized, Comparative Information

We have previously audited NORWESCAP’s 2017 financial statements, and we expressed an
unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated January 24, 2018.
In our opinion, the summarized, comparative information presented herein as of and for the year
ended August 31, 2017, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

Sipl ls, L
Certified Public Accountants

January 22, 2019
Livingston, New Jersey

&P SOBEL & CO uc



NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY COMMUNITY
ACTION PROGRAM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

August 31,
ASSETS 2018 2017
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,937,884 § 1,851,776
Grants receivable, net of allowance 2,275,058 2,381,321
Inventory and other assets 19,356 17,890
Investments 10,645 10,624
Total Current Assets 4,242,943 4,261,611
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, Net 1,692,589 1,815,326
RESTRICTED DEPOSITS 489,186 486,500
6,424,718 § 6,563,437
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,389,119 § 1,200,777
Advances from grantors 253,997 20,562
Mortgage payable, current portion 21,635 23,111
Total Current Liabilities 1,666,751 1,244,450
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Security deposits payable 6,359 7,076
Mortgage payable, net current portion - 21,683
Total Long-term Liabilities 6,359 28,759
Total Liabilities 1,673,110 1,273,209
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
NET ASSETS:
Unrestricted 2,712,201 3,144,355
Board-designated 187,530 242,350
Temporarily restricted 1,851,877 1,903,523
Total Net Assets 4,751,608 5,290,228
6,424,718 $ 6,563,437
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 4
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY COMMUNITY
ACTION PROGRAM, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended August 31,
2018 2017
CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED FOR):
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Changes in net assets $ (538,620) § 124,305
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets
to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation 122,737 116,727
Allowance for doubtful accounts (52,801) (324,590)
Bad debt expense 86,798 21,864
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Grants receivable 72,266 (139,188)
Inventory - (2,223)
Other assets (1,466) 21,864
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 188,342 534,112
Advances from grantors 235,435 (549,562)
Security deposit payable (717) (5,100)
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 111,974 (201,791)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of equipment - (141,827)
Interest reinvested 1) (22)
Net Cash Used for Investing Activities 21 (141,849)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
(Restricted deposits) refund of reserves (2,686) 113,258
Principal payments on mortgage/notes payable (23,159 (22,236)
Net Cash (Used for) Provided by Financing Activities (25,845) 91,022
NET INCREASE (DECREASE)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 86,108 (252,618)
BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,851,776 2,104,394
END OF YEAR $ 1,937,884 §$ 1,851,776

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOWS INFORMATION:

Interest paid 3 1,352 § 2,282

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of these financial statements. 7



NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2018 AND 2017

NQTE 1 - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES:

The Northwest New Jersey Community Action Program, Inc. ("NORWESCAP" or
“Organization”) is a private, not-for-profit organization incorporated in 1965, under the laws of
the state of New Jersey. NORWESCAP is a Community Action Agency whose operating
purpose is to aggregate federal and state government financial assistance and to provide
community services that include the following programs: Child Enrichment, Nutrition and
Health, Employment and Economic Development, Housing Emergency, Information and
Referral, and Volunteer Services. NORWESCAP is substantially dependent on federal financial
assistance and financial assistance from the state of New Jersey. Funding is received for various
periods of time which do not necessarily coincide with NORWESCAP's fiscal year.

The NORWESCAP Holding Company, Inc. ("Holding Company") is a not-for-profit
organization incorporated in 1994, under the laws of the state of New Jersey as a 501(c)(2)
organization. The Holding Company was organized to hold title for certain real estate.

The Sussex Seniors Urban Renewal Affordable Housing Non-Profit Corporation, Inc. ("Sussex
Seniors") is a not-for-profit organization incorporated in 1995, under the laws of the state of New
Jersey as a 501(c)(3) organization, Sussex Seniors was organized to acquire, develop and
manage the redevelopment and relocation housing project in Sussex Borough, New Jersey.
Sussex Seniors manages 11 affordable housing units dedicated for low-income senior citizens
and a commercial space of 5,356 sq. ft. located on Main Street, Sussex, New Jersey,

The Northwest New Jersey Echo Housing Corporation ("ECHO") is a not-for-profit organization
incotporated in 1994, under the laws of the state of New Jersey as a 50l(c)(3) organization.
ECHO was organized to provide modular housing units to qualified elderly persons. The project
consists of seven units which are attached to the house utilities infrastructure of related sponsors,
resulting in Elderly Cottage Housing Opportunities. The project operates under Section 202 of
the National Housing Act and is regulated by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development ("HUD") with respect to rental charges and operating methods.

ECHO is required to comply with the capital funding regulations of HUD, which require the
formation of a separate, single-asset corporation to hold title to HUD-funded property and
equipment, and record the revenue and expenses related to the maintenance of the property.
BCHO is actively in discussions with HUD and nonprofit organizations for the transfer of the
modular housing units.




NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Principles of Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts for NORWESCAP, Holding
Company, Sussex Seniors, and ECHO (collectively "NORWESCAP entities"). All of the entities
are under common control. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation, Sussex Seniors has elected to report its activities on a calendar-year
basis ending December 31st of each year and, as such, differs from NORWESCAP's reporting
period. Sussex Seniors' fiscal year begins January 1 and ends on December 31. The accounts of
Sussex Seniors are included in the 2018 and 2017 consolidated financial statements for the
twelve-month periods ended August 31, 2018 and 2017.

Summarized, Comparative Information:

The consolidated financial statements include certain prior-year, summarized, comparative
information in total but not by net asset class or functional areas. Such information does not
include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be
read in conjunction with NORWESCAP’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
August 31, 2017, from which the summarized information was derived.

Financial Statement Presentation:

Net assets and revenue, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of NORWESCAP and changes
therein are classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets — Net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.
Unrestricted net assets consist of investments and otherwise unrestricted amounts that are
available for use in carrying out the objectives of NORWESCAP and include those
expendable resources which have been designated for special use by the Board of
Trustees.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets — Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that
may or will be met, either by actions of NORWESCAP and/or the passage of time.
When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted
net assets and reported in the consolidated statements of activities and changes in net
assets as net assets released from restrictions.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets — Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that
must be maintained permanently by NORWESCAP, Generally, the donors of these
assets permit NORWESCAP to use all or part of the income earned on any related
investments for general or specific purposes. There are no permanently restricted net
assets,




NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include bank demand deposits, savings accounts and money market
accounts. For the purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, NORWESCAP
considers all highly liquid investments available for current use with an initial maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

Grants Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts:
Revenue from grants is reported based on allowable expenses. Grants receivable are the excess
of allowable expenses incurred over the cash received by NORWESCAP from funding agencies.

Grants receivable are stated at the amount’s management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. The Organization charges uncollectible grants receivable to operations when
determined to be uncollectible. Management has determined the allowance for doubtful accounts
as $64,925 and $117,726 for the years ending August 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Inventory:

Inventory, which is comprised primarily of purchased goods for the co-op food program, is
valued at the lower of cost or market. Donated items, which meet the criteria for recognition, are
recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.

Fuair Value:

Fair value measurements are defined as the amounts that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. There are three defined hierarchical levels based on the quality of inputs used
that directly relate to the amount of subjectivity associated with the determination of fair value.

The fair value hierarchy defines the three levels as follows:

Level 1: Valuations based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active market that are
accessible at the measurement date for identical assets or liabilities. The fair
value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs.

Level2: Valuations based on observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in inactive markets;
or model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs are observable or
can be derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data.

10



NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

Fair Value: (continued)

Level 3: Valuations based on unobservable inputs used when little or no market is
available. The fair value hierarchy gives lowest priority to Level 3 inputs.

In determining fair value, the Organization utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible, as weli as
considers counterparty credit risk (or other parties, such as counterparty in a swap) in its
assessment of fair value.

Gains and losses, both realized and unrealized, resulting from increases or decreases in the fair
value of investments are reflected in the consolidated statements of activities and changes in net
assets as increases or decreases in unrestricted net assets unless the use was restricted by explicit
donor stipulations or by law.

Certificates of Deposit:
The Organization holds a certificate of deposit which is valued at cost plus accrued interest
earned as of August 31, 2018 and 2017, which approximates market value.

Property and Equipment:

The NORWESCAP entities record land, building and equipment at cost on the date of
acquisition, or at the fair value of the asset, based on values of comparable assets, at the date of
gift for donated assets. Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10 to 30 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years
Vehicles 5to 7 years

In the absence of donor-imposed restrictions on the use of the assets, gifts of long-lived assets
are reported as unrestricted support. When an asset is sold or retired, the cost and accumulated
depreciation are removed from the respective accounts. Maintenance, repairs, and minor
renewals are charged to operations as incurred. Significant renewals and betterments that
increase the useful life of the assets and are greater than $5,000, are capitalized.

Federal, state, county and other funding sources may maintain an equitable interest in the
property purchased with grant monies, as well as the right to determine the use of proceeds from
the sale of those assets.

11



NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

Advances from Grantors:

Advances from grantors are the excess of grant cash received in the current fiscal year over
allowable grant expenses incurred during the current fiscal year. These advances from grantors
must be expended for grant purposes.

At the termination of federal, state, county, municipal and private grants, the balance of funds
unapplied are subject to disposition according to the funding source’s requirements.

Revenue Recognition:

Contributions are recognized as revenue and receivables when they are received or
unconditionally pledged. Thete were no unconditional pledges made during the years ending
August 31, 2018 and 2017.

The NORWESCAP entities report gifts of cash and other assets as restricted suppott if they are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction
expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in
the consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from
restrictions, However, the NORWESCARP entities report gifts of cash and other assets subject to
temporary restrictions by donor stipulations as unrestricted contributions in the consolidated
statements of activities and changes in net assets if the restriction is met during the accounting
period in which the gift was received.

The NORWESCAP entities account for contract and grant revenue, which are exchange
transactions, in the consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets to the extent
that expenses have been incurred for the purpose specified by the grantor during the period. In
applying this concept, the legal and contractuat requirements of each individual program are used
as guidance. All amounts not expended in accordance with the grants or contracts are recorded as
a liability to the grantor as the NORWESCAP entities do not maintain any equity in the grant or
contract. Additionally, funds received in advance of their proper usage are accounted for as
advances from grantors in the consolidated statements of financial position.

12



NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

Contributed Property and Equipment:

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as contributions at their estimated fair value
on the date of the gift. Such donations are reported as unrestricted contributions unless the donor
has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions
regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and
equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor restrictions regarding how long
those donated assets must be maintained, the NORWESCAP entities report expirations of donor
restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor.
The NORWESCAP entities reclassify temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets
at that time. Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets, if unrestricted, are transferred to unrestricted
net assets, or, if restricted, to deferred amounts restricted for fixed asset acquisitions.

Conftributed Services:

Contributed services are recorded at fair value and recognized as revenues and expenses in the
period received if they meet the requirements for recognition under accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

During fiscal years ended August 31, 2018 and 2017, contributed services recorded in the
consolidated financial statements were used primarily in the Head Start program. These early
childhood program aid instruction and related services are valued consistent with such services
provided for in the Phillipsburg Board of Education contracts. NORWESCAP also receives free
rent for classroom space from the town of Phillipsburg, New Jersey. For the years ended August
31, 2018 and 2017, contributed early childhood program aid services and rental space of
approximately $1,795,000 and $1,462,000, respectively, are reported in contributed services
revenue and expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in
net assets,

Contributed Goods:

Through its Food Bank program, NORWESCAP solicits and receives food commedities which
are to be distributed to qualified agency charitable organizations in specified areas. The fair
value of food commodities received is recognized as revenue in circumstances in which
NORWESCAP has sufficient discretion over the use and disposition of the items to recognize a
contribution.

Accordingly, the recognition of contributed goods as revenue is limited to circumstances in
which NORWESCAP takes constructive possession of the contributed goods and NORWESCAP
is the recipient of the gift, rather than an agent or intermediary.

13



NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

Contributed Goods: (continued)

In circumstances in which NORWESCAP is functioning as an agent or intermediary with respect
to the contributed goods, NORWESCAP does not report an asset when the food commodities are
received from a resource provider or donor, nor is an expense reported when the items are
remitted to the ultimate beneficiary.

Although NORWESCAP aims to distribute contributed goods received as promptly as possible,
it may continue to hold some contributed goods at year-end. Undistributed, contributed goods
over which NORWESCAP has no variance power are not recognized and reported as inventory
at year-end.

During the years ended August 31, 2018 and 2017, NORWESCAP distributed approximately
1,867,000 and 2,008,000 pounds of food, respectively, to qualified charitable organizations. The
value of these commodities has not been reported in the consolidated financial statements as
NORWESCAP determined it has no variance power over the distribution of these goods.

NORWESCAP also receives food commodities for distribution to eligible recipients in The
Emergency Food Assistance Program (“TEFAP”) for a fee and also participates in the New
Jersey State Food Purchase Program (“SFPP”). Under SFPP, NORWESCAP receives,
purchases, and distributes food to qualified recipients in exchange for a fee. NORWESCAP also
receives and distributes food commodities under other similar government programs. During the
years ended August 31, 2018 and 2017, NORWESCAP distributed approximately 573,000 and
1,493,000 pounds of food commodities under these programs, respectively. The value of those
commodities has not been reported in the consolidated financial statements as NORWESCAP
determined it has no variance power over the distribution of these goods.

Income Tax Status:

The NORWESCAP entities are exempt from income taxes under Sections 501(c)(3) and
501(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code and are also exempt under Title 15 of the State of New
Jersey Corporations and Associations Not-for-Profit Act.

The Organization follows standards that provide clarification on accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in the Organization’s financial statements. The guidance prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the recognition and measurement of a tax
position taken, ot expected to be taken, in a tax return, and also provides guidance on de-
recognition, classification, interest and penalties, disclosure and transition. The Organization’s
policy is to recognize interest and penalties on unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense.
No interest and penalties were recorded during the fiscal years ended 2018 and 2017. At August
31, 2018 and 2017, there are no significant income tax uncertainties.

14



NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

Interest Income:

Interest income is accounted for as required by grant contract requirements. Interest income is
returnable to the grantor for the following grant: Head Start (Department of Health and Human
Services). For other grants, interest income is retained and used to further program activities as
stipulated in the New Jersey Department of Community Affairs and other contracts.

Functional Expenses:

The cost of providing various programs and other activities has been summarized on a functional
basis in the consolidated statements of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have
been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited. Expenses are charged to
program services based on direct expenditures incurred. Suppott costs are allocated to program
services based on total program costs. Program expenses are those related to community action
programs and child enrichment, Management and general services relate to administrative
expenses associated with those programs.

Use of Estimates:

In preparing the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, management is required to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications:

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2017 consolidated financial statement
presentation to correspond to the cutrent year’s format. Net assets and changes in net assets are
unchanged due to these reclassifications.

Financial Statement Reporting for Nonprofits:

The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued an accounting pronouncement, Presentation
of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities, that will require net assets to be presented in
two classes instead of three. The two classes will be net assets with donor restrictions and net
assets without donor restrictions. Additional enhanced disclosures will be required to present the
amounts and purposes of Board designations, composition of net assets with donor restrictions
and how the restrictions affect the use of resources. It also requires the Organization to
communicate qualitative and quantitative information on how it manages its liquid resources
available to meet the cash flow needs for general expenditures within one year of the statement
of financial position date. The pronouncement is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2017, Tt will be effective for the year ending August 31, 2019.
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

Financial Statement Reporting for Nonprofits: (Continued)

The organization is currently evaluating the effect that the new standard will have on its

consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent Events:

The Organization has evaluated events subsequent to the consolidated statement of financial
position date as of August 31, 2018 through January 22, 2019, the date that the consolidated

financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 3 - RESTRICTED DEPOSITS—RESERVES:

Cash reserves required by HUD at August 31, 2018, are comprised of the following:

Reserves
Moving Replacement Total
Balance, beginning of year $ 456,753 $ 29,747 $ 486,500
Interest 2,676 30 2,706
Bank service charge (20) - (20)
Balance, end of year $ 459,409 $ 29,777 $ 489,186

Cash reserves required by HUD at August 31, 2017, are comprised of the following:

Reserves
Moving Replacement Total
Balance, beginning of year $ 570,031 $ 29,727 $ 599,758
Interest 1,084 20 1,104
Approved withdrawals (114,362) - (114,362)
Balance, end of year $ 456,753 $ 29,747 $ 486,500

Written prior approval from HUD is required to disburse funds from each reserve account.
There were disbursements from the reserves during the years ended August 31, 2018 and 2017,

of $0 and $114,362, respectively.

16



NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 4 - GRANT RECEIVABLES:

Grants receivable are comprised of the following:

August 31,
2018 2017
Community Services Block Grant $ 645270 $ 244,726
Head Start Abbott - ECPA 25,018 80,845
Head Start and Early Head Start 465,229 543,643
Family Self Sufficiency (FSS) 71,632 69,233
Homeless Prevention - 93,366
LIHEAP, Weatherization, Heating Improvement
Program and the Department of Energy 308,464 545,913
NJ Cancer Education and Early Detection (CEED) 75,172 116,157
Women, Infants and Children (WIC) 222,996 168,861
HUD - 117,726
Other 526,202 518,577
Total Grants Receivable 2,339,983 2,499,047
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts 64,925 117,726
Grants Receivable, net $ 2,275,058 § 2,381,321

NOTE 5 - INVESTMENTS:

The certificate of deposit bears an interest rate between .25% - 2.35%. Interest income on the
certificate of deposit for the years ended August 31, 2018 and 2017, is $21 and $24, respectively.

The following table summarizes assets which have been accounted for at fair value on a
recurring basis, along with the basis of determination of fair value:

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
AUGUST 31, 2018
LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 TOTAL
Certificate of deposit _ $ - $ 10,645 $ - $ 10,645

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
AUGUST 31, 2017
LEVEL 1 LEVEL2 LEVEL 3 TOTAL
Certificate of deposit $ - $ 10,624 $ - $ 10,624

17



NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 6 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation, at August 31, 2018, is as follows:

Holding Sussex
NORWESCAP Company Seniors ECHO Total
Land $ 158,816 $ 53,001 $ 191,966 $ - $ 403,783
Building and
improvements 942,325 1,364,108 767,864 736,449 3,810,746
Furniture, fixtures
and equipment 394,082 - - - 394,082
Vehicles 1,135,157 - - - 1,135,157
2,630,380 1,417,109 959,830 736,449 5,743,768
Less: Accumulated
depreciation 2,175,041 614,983 524,706 736,449 4,051,179
$ 455339 $ 802,126 $ 435,124 § - $ 1,692,589

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation, at August 31, 2017, is as follows:

Holding Sussex
NORWESCAP Company Seniors ECHO Total
Land $ 158,816 $ 53,001 $ 191,966 % - $ 403,783
Building and
improvements 942,325 1,364,108 767,864 1,052,070 4,126,367
Furniture, fixtures
and equipment 394,082 - - - 394,082
Vehicles 1,135,157 - - - 1,135,157
2,630,380 1,417,109 959,830 1,052,070 6,059,389
Less: Accutnulated
depreciation 2,123,369 569,513 499,111 1,052,070 4,244,063
$ 507,011 $ 847,596 $ 460,719 3 - $ 1,815,326

Property and equipment purchased with federal or state finds are vested with the NORWESCAP
entities as long as the NORWESCAP entities are granted the right to carry out the various
programs for which such assets were acquired. Although the government grantor may retain
legal title during the term of the arrangement, it is likely that the NORWESCAP entities will use
the assets for the remainder of their useful lives and will be permitted to keep the assets when the
arrangement is terminated.
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NORTHWEST NEW JERSEY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 6 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT: (Continued)

A Notice of Federal Interest has been filed with the county record of deeds for certain land and
buildings on which Head Start facilities are located. The Notice of Federa!l Interest requires the
land and buildings to be used in a manner consistent with the Head Start Act governing the
financial statements under which the property was acquired. The land cannot be sold or
transferred to another party without the written permission of the responsible Department of
Health and Human Services official.

Depreciation expense for the years ended August 31, 2018 and 2017, was $122,737 and
$116,727, respectively.

NOTE 7 - ADVANCES FROM GRANTORS:

Advances from grantors are comprised of the following:

August 31

2018 2017

Early Head Start Expansion $ 118,704 $ -

uccC 96,124 -
CCYC 20,562 20,562

Healthy Families 13,383 -

Other 7,224 -
Total Advances from Grantors $ 255,997 $ 20,562

NOTE 8 - MORTGAGE PAYABLE:

Mortgage payable consists of the following:

August 31,
2018 2017
NORWESCAP has a mortgage payable to a bank for a building
located in Phillipsburg, New Jersey with an interest rate of 4.00% at
a monthly installment of $2,046. The property is secured by a
Notice of Federal Interest and has a 20-year term with a maturity
date of June 1, 2019. $ 21,635 $ 44,794
Less: Current portion (21,635) (23,111)
Mortgage Payable, net current portion $ -0 $ 21,683
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 9 - LEASES:

NORWESCAP occupies office and classroom space and leases various equipment under
separate operating leases with various terms expiring between 2018 and 2028. Total rental space
charged to operations for the years ended August 31, 2018 and 2017, was $535,939 and
$366,417, respectively. Rental space is charged to rents/space in the consolidated statements of
functional expenses and is primarily for Head Start facilities. It is expected that in the normal
course of operations, other leases that expire will be renewed or replaced. Rental of certain
facilities is contingent upon the continuance of federal and state funding for which the programs
are dependent. NORWESCAP has no sublease rentals.

Future minimum lease commitments for office and classroom space as of August 31, are as
follows:

Year Ended August 31,
2019 $ 344,834
2020 206,580
2021 124,30t
2022 92,750
2023 93,300

$ 861,765

NOTE 10 - CONTRIBUTIONS, FEES, RENTS AND OTHER:

Contributions, fees, rents, and other revenue is compromised of the following:

Year Ended
August 31,
2018 2017

Contributions $ 924175 § 1,299,704
Fees 143,560 128,182
Food distribution 136,853 270,635
Rents 91,111 118,426
Other 92,387 461,730

$ 1,388,086 $ 2,278,677
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ACTION PROGRAM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 11 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS:

NORWESCAP maintains a defined-contribution pension plan. The benefit plan is a tax-deferred
annuity plan, whereby employees elect to voluntarily contribute up to the maximum amount
allowed in accordance with Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. Employer
contributions are made based on years of service with NORWESCAP and based on a percentage
of the compensation of the employee for that year. Employer contribution will be made whether
or not an employee is making contributions to the plan. Pension expense for the years ended
August 31, 2018 and 2017, was $314,084 and $301,081, respectively, and is recorded in fringe
benefits on the consolidated statements of functional expenses.

NOTE 12 - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS:

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following:

Year Ended
August 31,
2018 2017
Community Action Programs $ 352,177 § 403,823
Northwest New Jersey Echo Housing, Inc. 1,499,700 1,499,700

$ 1,851,877  $ 1,903,523

The amount of $1,499,700 is a HUD-funded Section 202 Capital Advance to pay for the
construction of the HUD project. HUD holds a nonamortizing mortgage on the property under
the terms of the Capital Advance agreement with HUD. No repayment is required so long as the
owner complies with the HUD Regulatory Agreement to make available rental housing to very
low-income elderly persons for a term of 40 years, beginning August 9, 1996 through August 9,
2036. Failure to comply with the terms of the Capital Advance and HUD’s agreements may
result in foreclosure under the mortgage. Management believes that the possibility that
repayment will occur is remote and that treatment of the Capital Advance as temporarily
restricted net assets is appropriate.

On November 18, 2015, the Project received final written approval from HUD to transfer three
modular housing units to the Volunteers of America located in Blackwood, New Jersey, with the
intention of providing transitional housing for homeless veterans.

The Project is actively in discussion with HUD to opt out of the ECHO demonstration project.
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NOTE 12 - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS: (Continued)

HUD issued a formal written notice of default on December 7, 2018. Management has an
outlined process in order to comply with HUD to exit this program and has responded requesting
an extension of 90 days to complete this process. The financial statements do not reflect any
adjustments in regard to the notice of default received.

NOTE 13 - BOARD-DESIGNATED NET ASSETS:

As of August 31, 2018 and 2017, the Board has designated $187,530 and $242,350, respectively,
of unrestricted net assets for operating reserves. The funds are only to be released as time lapses
and/or for purposes specifically appropriated for by the Board of Trustees with agreement of the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

NOTE 14 - CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISKS:

The Organization receives approximately 79% and 69% of its funding from various federal and
state governmental agencies. The operations of the Organization are subject to the administrative
directives, rules and regulations of federal and state regulatory agencies. Such administrative
directives, rules and regulations are subject to changes that may occur because of inadequate
funding with little notice to pay for the related costs, including the additional administrative
burden, to comply with a change.

The Organization participates in federal and state assisted grant programs. These programs are
subject to program compliance audits by the grantors and their representatives. The
Organization is potentially liable for expenditures which may be disallowed pursuant to the
terms of these grant programs. Management of the Organization is not aware of any material
items of noncompliance which would result in the disallowance of grant program expenditures.

The Organization maintains cash balances at one financial institution. At times, cumulative
balances may exceed insured limits.
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